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Chairman’s Statement
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Review

| would like to present the consolidated results of EcoGreen Fine
Chemicals Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively “EcoGreen” or the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2012 to our shareholders. During the period,
the Group’s turnover fell moderately by 2% to approximately
RMB1,057 million. Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation
and amortization (“EBITDA”) increased by 13% to RMB240
million. Profit attributable to shareholders rose by 7% to RMB128
million. Basic earnings per share were RMB26.5 cents, up 8%
when compared with RMB24.6 cents for 2011. To thank our
shareholders for their support, the board of directors of the
Company (the “Board”) has proposed a final dividend of HK4.1
cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2012, subject
to the approval by the annual general meeting of shareholders.
Together with the interim dividend of HK1 cent per share, the final
dividend will bring the total dividend for the year to HK5.1 cents,
compared with a dividend of HK4.68 cents per share for the
previous yeatr.

In 2012, the faltering demand in the European and the United
States markets and China’s slowing economic growth exerted
various degrees of pressure on most industries. The Renminbi’s
appreciation, downstream customer tightening inventory control
and structural change in end-user demand made the operating
environment difficult for the overall flavor and fragrance industry.
Nevertheless, the global demand for daily necessities was
growing steadily albeit slowly during the year.

ECOGREEN FINE CHEMICALS GROUP LIMITED -« #ia#54{t TEEAR A
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The Group’s measures to actively expand its customer base,
boost product sales, effectively manage the raw material
resources and its flexible product pricing mechanism led to
steady business performance in 2012. Turnover decreased
slightly by 2% when compared with that of 2011. Gross profit
margin rose to 24.5% in 2012 from 22.0% in 2011 after the Group
overcame various rising production costs and stabilised raw
material costs, reaching to a better level in 2010 of 24.8%. During
the year of 2012, annual sales volume of the Group recovered
although the product average selling price was still lower when
compared with those in 2011. However, reviewed on a half-yearly
basis, the Group’s turnover in the second half of 2012 increased
by 17%, which was attributable to the constantly increasing sales
of higher margin products. This resulted in different degrees of
improvements in selling prices and sales volumes in the second
half of the year compared with the first half of the year, reflecting
the steady improvement of the Group’s business.

As to customer relations, in the face of the business environment
volatility and industry competition, the Group won the trust and
support from its customers with quality products and proactive
services, providing customers with total solutions from research
and development, procurement and production, to supply chain
management. During the year, the Group strengthened its ties
with existing customers and also actively developed relations with
new customers, of which increased the weight in total sales to
achieve a steady growth.

In terms of raw materials procurement strategy, the Group at
present still mainly uses turpentine as its major raw material for
producing a series of aroma chemicals. It has gained a better
control over the supply of raw materials after it has taken many
years to consolidate and vertically integrate the raw material
supply chain. Meanwhile, the Group has been striving to develop
a series of petroleum-based products with an aim to establish a
more balanced raw material resources supporting system, and at
the same time, diversify into fine chemical industry and the new
aroma chemical business.

In terms of product portfolio, in addition to expanding its business
of turpentine-based terpene aromas, the Group has in recent
years launched aroma chemicals of floral, woody and green notes
and various food flavour chemicals into the market to enrich
its product portfolio. Sales of these products have become the
new growth driver for the Group and accounted for 25% of the
Group’s overall sales in 2012. Meanwhile, more petroleum-based
aroma chemicals were added to the product portfolio in 2012 and
will begin contributing to the Group’s revenue in 2013.
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Breakthroughs were also achieved at the upgrade of production
equipment and technology. A trial run of the Group’s first
“super-jet reaction” production equipment was conducted at its
plant in Haicang. The production equipment, which was newly
established, saved energy effectively. Presently, the Group is
upgrading the system structure and catalytic system in Haicang
plant to raise the production efficiency. The upgrade is expected
to save energy, reduce waste and fulfil the goal of expanding
production capacity through enhanced efficiency of reaction
during production. Moreover, the Group is overhauling the
technologies of the key processes of production with an aim
to enhance the overall efficiency of production and operation.
In addition, the first phase of its plant in Changtai, Fujian
Province, has completed its trial run and has started production,
increasing the Group’s production capacity for aroma chemicals
and specialty chemicals. Furthermore, the joint venture plant in
Huanggang, Hubei Province, was almost completed at the end
of 2012 despite a slight delay. The joint venture plant is expected
to commence trial production at the end of March in 2013 and
will reinforce the Group’s production capacity for new aroma
chemicals and generate revenue.

On the business layout as China plays an increasingly important
role in the development of the global chemical industry, this
represents a great opportunity for the Group to steadily develop
and expand its business of specialty chemicals, which include the
petroleum-based aroma chemicals with high growth potential.
In 2012, after a thorough study and careful planning, the Group
contemplates diversifying into a value-added downstream
business of aroma chemicals and basic fine chemicals.
The diversification proposition was inspired by the Chinese
government’s plan to build a Western Taiwan Strait petrochemical
base in Gulei, Fujian Province. Under the government’s plan,
Sinopec, PetroChina, China National Offshore Oil Corp and
Petrochemical Industry Association of Taiwan will together
establish a large-scale petrochemical business in the place. The
Group will be able to capitalize on the stable and plentiful supply
of petrochemical raw materials from the integrated petroleum
refining business to be set up there. The proposed value-
added downstream business of aroma chemicals and basic fine
chemicals in Gulei will form a trilogy with the production bases in
Haicang and Changtai, laying a solid foundation for the Group’s
development in years ahead. The Group is presently negotiating
the land use right and business plan of the preliminary proposition
with the government and relevant petrochemical consortiums.

During the year under review, the Group continued to strengthen
its financial position to cope with the fluctuations in aroma
chemical industry and to prepare for its future development. As
at 31 December 2012, total net cash balances, being pledged
bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents less total borrowings
and bills payable, amounted to RMB198 million. Net cash from
operating activities for the year was approximately RMB232
million in 2012, compared with that of RMB62 million in 2011.
Although gearing ratio rose to 41.8% in 2012 from 38.3% in
2011, the Group would like to have sufficient financial resource
to support its further development. To cope with the fluctuating
currency exchange rates and the more significant interest
spreads on both the domestic and overseas capital markets,
the Group adopted a prudent approach to managing the risks of
currency exchange and interest rates. These efforts reduced the
Group’s overall financial risk and decreased its financing costs,
reinforcing its capability of withstanding the fluctuations in raw
material costs and of developing its business.
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Outlook

Although the global economic recovery remains uncertain,
demand for daily necessities such as the Group’s products
continue to grow steadily instead of shrinking. Moreover, the
consistent growth of the emerging markets represented by China
will continue to drive the development of the global fragrance and
aroma chemicals industry. Overall, the Group is optimistic about
the prospects in the year ahead.

In 2013, the Group will continue to undertake a number of major
business restructuring plans:

Firstly, it will seek to diversify raw material sourcing globally.
Turpentine remains as the Group’s most important strategic
resource, which in the past decades has been dependent on
the rosin industry in China. However, as China’s demographic
dividend has been disappearing, the cost structure of the natural
resources of raw materials has also changed. The Group now
needs to solve various problems associated with the applicability
of turpentine from different sources by adjusting its major
production technologies. In the coming year, the Group will
have better access to a more diversified source of raw materials
internationally, thereby enhancing the reliability and stability of the
Group’s future supply of resources.

Secondly, it will begin to develop the full industry chain of the
turpentine with an emphasis on aroma chemicals to enrich the
product portfolio. The products will include functional chemicals
used in pharmaceuticals, special coating materials and surface
active agents. The move will enable the Group to expand the
customer base, develop the finely segmented target markets,
and establish more strategic partnerships throughout the aroma
chemical industry chain around the world. The Group will
eventually gain a unique strategic competitive advantage along
the value chain of the turpentine industry while enhancing its
worldwide market share.

Thirdly, as part of the strategic move to extend its industry chain
downstream, the Group will continue to explore the market for
applications of functional products by providing high value-added
key components and total-solutions for the daily necessities
industries such as food, oral care, washing and cleaning agents
as well as safety solvents. As the Group continues to transform its
core business, expanding down the value chain has become the
Group’s long-term strategy.

Fourthly, the Group has achieved breakthroughs in its new
product portfolio made from petroleum-based raw materials after
years of efforts. The Group has recognised the starting point
in terms of manufacturing technology and business model for
fine chemical materials, so as to establish a more balanced raw
material resources supporting system. The commencement of
the Gulei Industrial Park will also provide protection for the Group
to establish a more balanced capacity of raw materials system,
enabling the Group to move into a new development platform for
its fine chemicals business.
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Fifthly, in the year ahead, as the joint venture plant in Huanggang,
Hubei Province has been put into operation in the first quarter
of 2013, the Group would then play a crucially pivotal influence
on a key basic raw materials market — the downstream acrolein
derivative product market. Moreover, the Changtai Plant is set to
embrace a richer product mix, while its equipment and production
capacity will see substantial improvement. Elsewhere, the
Haicang Plant will continue to have improvement in energy saving
and technological upgrades, while the factory’s operating system
is expected to achieve capacity expansion in different ways to
further reduce the cost of production. At the same time, the
Group will effectively reduce carbon footprint, enabling EcoGreen
to achieve a greater contribution to sustainable development.

Sixthly, the Group will continue to optimise the flow of product
delivery and material supplies by improving and broadening
its international chemical logistic channels. The Group will try
to localize its logistic services for customers in two important
markets, namely Europe and the United States. This will enable
the Group to fully satisfy the demand of the customers and
enhance its competitive advantages, which in turn will be
translated into more market opportunities for the Group’s new
business.

While the Group continues to make every effort to strengthen
its own business development in an organic way, it also seeks
synergies from mergers and acquisitions, or partnering with peer
companies within the industry or along the value chain, in order
to grow at a faster pace. In the past year, the Group has explored
many possibilities and expects to make some substantial
progress soon. Over the last decade, the industry has witnessed
the steady growth of EcoGreen since its inception in the flavour
and fragrance ingredient sector. In the next decade, with the
collective efforts of every member of the Company, EcoGreen will
enter a new era of rapid development, so | am confident we will
go from strength to strength.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEBNWE D

Final Dividend

The Board has proposed a final dividend of HK4.1 cents
(2011: HKS3.48 cents) per ordinary share for the year ended 31
December 2012. Together with the interim dividend of HK1 cent
(2011: HK1.2 cents) per share (having been paid on 18 October
2012), the total dividend for the year ended 31 December 2012
amounted to HK5.1 cents (2011: HK4.68 cents) per share,
representing a total of RMB19.96 million (2011: RMB18.4 million).
Subject to shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual
general meeting to be held on 28 May 2013, the proposed final
dividend will be paid on or around 28 June 2013.

Closure of Register of Members

The transfer books and register of members of the Company will
be closed from Thursday, 23 May 2013 to Tuesday, 28 May 2013
(both days inclusive), during which period no transfer of shares
will be effected, for the purpose of determining shareholders
who are entitled to attend and vote at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. In order to qualify for attending and voting at
the forthcoming annual general meeting, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
for registration with the Company’s branch share registrar and
transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited, at 26th Floor,
Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 22 May 2013.

The transfer books and register of members of the Company will
be closed from Wednesday, 5 June 2013 to Friday, 7 June 2013
(both days inclusive), during which period no transfer of shares
will be effected. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend,
all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged for registration with the Company’s
branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor
Tengis Limited at the aforementioned address not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Tuesday, 4 June 2013.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWR DM

Business Review E Sl

The Group derives its revenue primarily from the manufacturing REBNRAZTERELEERBESES - EEXEB
and trading businesses. The manufacturing business includes the  BFE&EREEFTELE R » KRR N F R
production and sales of aroma chemicals, natural extracts and B2 o BT ¢

intermediates. Breakdown of revenue by operating segments is

as follow:
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
Revenue WA
Manufacturing HE 840,418 938,412
Resource management and trading ZREBLEZ 5 216,953 136,276
Total revenue PN L-L] 1,057,371 1,074,688
A further breakdown of turnover by product is as follows: EmEXEESTHOT

RMB’000 % of total RMB’000 % of total
Fr L4 2R T Ih#B%E
AREE At AR EXvid

Manufacturing EEE
Aroma chemicals FEEER 628,140 59% 734,334 68%
Natural extracts KA 146,684 14% 138,614 13%
Intermediates A ] A2 65,594 6% 65,464 6%
840,418 79% 938,412 87%
Resource management and trading ERELHE 5 216,953 21% 136,276 13%
Turnover R 1,057,371 100% | 1,074,688 100%
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEBNWE D

Business Review

In 2012, both the natural extracts business and intermediate
business recorded a slight growth. The Group’s turnover for
the year was RMB1,057 million, a decrease of 2% from the
previous year. Excluding contributions from the supplementary
resource management and trading business, sales derived from
our three major business segments has decreased by 10%.
Profit attributable to shareholders improved to RMB128 million
by 7% from the previous year. Basic earnings per share were
approximately RMB26.5 cents.

Manufacturing
(i) Aroma Chemicals

For the year ended 31 December 2012, turnover of aroma
chemicals decreased by 14% to RMB628 million (2011:
RMB734 million), accounting for 59% of the Group’s
turnover (2011: 68%) and a gross profit margin of 27.7%
(2011: 22.1%). The product price of Dihydromyrcenal,
as an important contributor of the aroma chemicals
business, was adjusted downward in this year due to the
sharp decline of raw material prices. The total sales of
Dihydromyrcenol reduced by 25% from the previous year.

Aroma Chemicals continued to be the Group’s core
products during the year under review, and constituted
a stable and major income source for the Group. During
the year, the diminishing selling price was offset with the
increase in sales volume of Aroma Chemicals. Due to the
fall of raw material prices by nearly 40% over last year,
the selling price of Aroma Chemicals shrank to a certain
extent. Aroma chemicals are primarily used as functional
ingredients and key components in many daily consumer
goods, with a combined positive effect of its diversified
applications and the development in the emerging markets,
market demand continued to rise. In addition, certain new
aroma and food flavour chemicals launching lately were
further recognized by the customers and well received
in the market. The new series of products have already
contributed RMB267 million (2011: RMB230 million) to
the Group’s revenue, with a profit margin amounted to
approximately 31%, which is higher than the profit margin of
our fragrance chemical products and represents one of the
sources in the growth of Group’s profitability.

7% o8

BE—_Z——%F AEENORRERYES KT H
BEBORAFESEMER AEEFELEER
10.57B AR  MEFH 2% - MEREBHET
BREEREGHBHNER - —KREREBHEE
BB #10% » BEREMEENZE1 28T AR -
BEFENT% - BRERBHL 2660 AR °

HE

(i) FEIEER
HE-_Z——F+-_A=+—HILEFE 7
EEERMEETETR14%E6.28BITLAR
(T ——F  734ETARE)  HRE
BEEEN0%(—F——F : 68%) * 5
KRE2TT%(ZE——F :221%) - =4 A
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R AN E E R RHE & RIE T J8 M & BUE K
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HEEF TH#H25% ©
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BEMHET—EEXES -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEBNWE D

Business Review (continued)

Manufacturing (continued)
(ii) Natural Extracts

In respect of the Natural Extracts products, apart from
existing natural pharmaceutical raw materials, the
Group has been actively engaged in the development
of food additives business for the production of food
ingredients, fast food, frozen food and pet nutrition food,
which is produced with purification and bio-conversion
technologies from natural produces. Natural extracts
mainly include seafood, meat and mushroom extracts.

During the year under review, the Group’s natural extract
products maintained steady growth. Turnover from sales
of Natural Extracts increased by 6% to RMB147 million
(2011: RMB139 million), accounting for 14% (2011: 13%)
of the Group’s sales. Gross profit margin amounted
10 26.9% (2011: 26.1%). This is due to the scarcity of
resources of certain products, which have high gross profit
margins.

(i) Intermediates

Besides the chiral pharmaceuticals and intermediates,
the Group also applies similar advanced technologies of
synthesis to produce agrochemical intermediates, which
will later be turned into the kind of eco-pesticide.

During the year under review, turnover remained steady at
RMB65.6 million (2011: RMB65.5 million), accounting for
6% (2011: 6%) of the Group’s sales. Gross profit margin
was 46.0% (2011:46.4%).

Resource management and trading business

This business is a necessary complement to the three main
business categories listed above, in particular the aroma
chemicals business. The Group has been striving for the
integration of upstream turpentine resources and expansion
of supply chain management, with a view of systemic
competitiveness and meeting customer needs more effectively.
This business mainly includes the trading operation of gum rosin,
gum turpentine and other special botanic essential oils and
their by-products. During the year, revenue from the resources
management and trading increased by 59% to RMB217 million,
accounting for 21% of the Group’s revenue.

ECOGREEN FINE CHEMICALS GROUP LIMITED « A4t TEEAR A A
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEBNWE D

Financial Review

Turnover

The Group recorded a slight decrease of 2% in its turnover for the
year ended 31 December 2012, which amounted to RMB1,057
million. The Group’s turnover in the second half was encouraging,
with an increase by 11% compared with the last corresponding
period. In analysing the sales in 2012, despite the increase of the
sales volumes by approximately 10% over last year, the drop in
selling price had led to the slight diminishing of the turnover.

Gross Profit

During the year under review, the Group’s gross profit totaled
RMB259 million, increased by 9%. Gross profit margin increased
from 22.0% in 2011 to 24.5% in 2012. In 2011, the Group had
made a provision for impairment of inventories of RMB17.2
million. As the provision was recognised in “cost of sales” in the
consolidated income statement, it had negative impact of 1.6%
on the Group’s gross profit margin for that year.

By the products category, the gross profit margin of aroma
chemicals increased from 22.1% in 2011 to 27.7% in 2012, while
natural extracts increased from 26.1% in 2011 to 26.9% this
year. The profit margin of intermediates decreased from 46.4%
in 2011 to 46.0% in 2012. The gross profit margin of resource
management and trading products increased from 5.8% in 2011
10 7.2% in 2012.

Operating Income and Expense

Selling and marketing expenses in 2012 accounted for 2.6% of
the Group’s turnover (2011: 2.7%). Under the Group’s effective
cost-cutting measures, the selling and marketing expenses to
sales ratio remained stable.

In 2012, administrative expenses accounted for 4.6% of turnover
(2011: 4.5%). In 2012, the recruitment of extra staff for the plant
and the adjusted wages due to prices inflation leading to the 9%
significant increase of staff-related expenses.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEBNWE D

Financial Review (continued)

Finance Costs — Net

As a significant portion of the Group’s borrowings is denominated
in United States dollars (“US dollars”), the stability of US dollars
against Chinese Renminbi has led to the significant decrease of
the exchange gain to RMBO0.12 million (2011: RMB11.6 million).
On the other hand, the higher interest rates for bank loans
obtained in China have resulted in an increase in finance cost;
while at the same time, higher interest income was earned from
the bank deposits, resulting in an overall rise of the net finance
cost by approximately RMB14.89 million as compared to last
year.

Taxation

Tax expense of the Group for 2012 was RMB35.9 million (2011:
RMB23.1 million). Effective tax rate of the Group is 21.9% (2011:
16.3%).

Profit for the Year

Profit for the year in 2012 was RMB128 million, representing an
increase of 7% compared with RMB119 million in 2011. EBITDA
for the year was RMB240 million, represented 13% increase as
compared to RMB212 million in 2011.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

During the year under review, the Group’s primary source of
funding mainly included the cash generated from operating
activities. For the year ended 31 December 2012, net cash
generated from operating activities amounted to RMB231.7
million (2011: RMB61.9 million). The Group had net cash used in
investing activities of RMB50.3 million (2011: RMB32.8 million).
During the year under review, the net cash inflow from financing
activities amounted to RMB70.7 million (2011: net cash inflow of
RMB28.3 million).

As at 31 December 2012, the average inventory turnover days,
average trade receivable turnover days and average trade
payable turnover days were 61 days, 128 days and 116 days
respectively (2011: 58 days, 112 days and 87 days).

The Group’s financial position remains very solid and healthy
during the year under review. As at 31 December 2012, the
net current assets and the current ratio of the Group were
approximately RMB755 million (2011: RMB755 million) and 1.9
(2011: 2.3) respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEBNWE D

Financial Review (continued)

Liquidity and Financial Resources (continued)

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had borrowings and bills
payable of approximately RMB497 million and RMB238 million
respectively (2011: RMB414 million and RMB224 million). Among
the Group’s borrowing, outstanding short-term borrowings
amounted to RMB494 million (2011: RMB299 million). As at 31
December 2012, the Group’s ratio of borrowings to total equity,
was approximately 41.8% (2011: 38.3%) and the Group’s net
cash balance, being pledged bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents less borrowings and bills payable amounted to
RMB198 million (2011: RMB55 million).

With the positive cash inflow from the Group’s operations, its
available banking facilities and its existing cash resources, the
Group has very strong liquidity and sufficient financial resources
to meet its commitments, working capital requirements and future
investments for expansion.

Treasury Policies and Exposure to Fluctuations in
Exchange Rates

The Group’s assets, liabilities, revenues and transactions are
mainly denominated in Renminbi, United States dollars and
Hong Kong dollars with its operation mainly in the PRC. As at
31 December 2012, the Group’s borrowings of approximately
RMB312 million and RMB156 million were denominated in
Renminbi and United States dollars, respectively.

The Group’s foremost exposure to the foreign exchange
fluctuations was caused by the revaluation of Renminbi during
the year under review. The Group’s export sales are, in majority,
denominated in United States dollars. Nevertheless, the Group
has not experienced any material difficulties or effects on its
operations or liquidity as a result of fluctuations in currency
exchange rates during the year. The Group will conduct periodic
review of its exposure to foreign exchange risk and may use
proper financial instruments and financing arrangements for
hedging purposes when considered appropriate.
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Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had 446 full-time employees,
among whom 440 were based in the PRC. For the year under
review, the total employment costs incurred for 2012 including
directors’ emoluments amounted to RMB40.4 million. The Group
has established its human resources policies and procedures
with a view to deploying the incentives and rewards of the
remuneration system. The remuneration package offered to the
staff is appropriate for the duties and in line with the prevailing
market terms. Staff benefits, including medical coverage and
provident funds, are provided to employees. The Group has also
established effective performance evaluation system in which
employees are properly rewarded on a performance-related
basis under the Group’s salary and bonus system. The Group
has adopted a share option scheme for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to the management, key technician and
other eligible participants who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations.

By the Order of the Board
Yang Yirong
President

Hong Kong, 26 March 2013
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Corporate Governance Report

L SR A

The board of directors of EcoGreen Fine Chemicals Group
Limited (the “Company”) (the “Board”) acknowledges the
importance of and benefit from good corporate governance
practices and is committed to improving the corporate
governance practices in order to enhance better transparency
and to ensure that business activities and decision making
processes are regulated in a proper manner to safeguard the
interests of shareholders.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based
on the principles (the “Principles”), code provisions (the
“Code Provisions”) and certain recommended best practices
(the “Recommended Best Practices”) as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) (and the new Code Provisions
and Recommended Best Practices since 1 April 2012 when
amendments to the CG Code became effective).

The Company periodically reviews its corporate governance
practices and is committed to complying with the code provisions
as stated in the CG code to the extent that the directors of the
Company (“Directors”) consider it is applicable and practical to
the Company.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company has
complied with the code provisions under the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (effective until 31 March 2012) and the
Corporate Governance Code (effective from 1 April 2012) as set
out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules except for code provisions
A.2.1 and A.6.7. The following summarises the Company’s
corporate governance practices and explains deviations, if any,
from the CG Code.

The Board

Responsibilities

The Board is accountable to the shareholders for leading the
Group in a responsible and effective manner. The Board provides
leadership and formulates strategic policies and plans of the
Group with a view to enhancing shareholder interests while
the day-to-day operations of the Group are delegated to the
management.

The Board reserves for its decisions all major matters of the
Group, including: objectives and overall strategies of the Group;
annual budgets and financial matters; equity related transactions
such as issue of shares/options and repurchase of shares;
dividend; raising of capital loan; determination of major business
strategy; merger and acquisition; major investment; annual
financial budget in turnover, profitability and capital expenditure;
review and approval of financial performance and announcement;
and matters as required by laws and ordinance.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary, with
a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules
and regulation are followed.
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The Board (continued)

Responsibilities (continued)

Each Director is normally able to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense,
upon making request to the Board.

The Directors are continually updated with the regulatory
requirements, business activities and development of the
Company to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities.
Through regular Board meetings, all Directors are kept abreast
of the conduct, business activities and development of the
Company.

The management has the obligation to supply the Board and
the various Committees with adequate information in a timely
manner to enable the members to make informed decisions.
Each Director has separate and independent access to the
Company’s senior management to acquire more information than
is volunteered by management and to make further enquiries if
necessary.

The functions delegated to management are periodically
reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any
significant transactions entered into by the management.

Composition

The Board currently comprises a total of nine members including
five Executive Directors, one Non-executive Director (the “NED”)
and three Independent Non-executive Directors (the “INED”). It
has the necessary balance of skills and experience appropriate
to the requirements of the business of the Company. There
is a strong element of independence in the Board, which can
effectively exercise independent judgement.

The Board comprises:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yang Yirong (Chairman & President)
Ms. Lu Jiahua

Mr. Gong Xionghui

Mr. Han Huan Guang

Mr. Lin Zhigang

NED
Mr. Feng Tao (Vice Chairman)

INED

Mr. Lau Wang Yip, Derrick
Mr. Yau Fook Chuen
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John

The above list of directors is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing
Rules from time to time.
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The Board (continued)

Composition (continued)

The Board’s composition covers a balance of expertise, skills
and industry experience so as to bring in valuable contributions
and advices for the development of the Group’s business. The
NED and INED together have substantial experience in fields of
auditing, legal matters, business, accounting, corporate internal
control and regulatory affairs. Through active participation in
Board meetings, taking the lead in managing issues involving
potential conflict of interests and serving on Board committees,
all NED and INED make various contributions to the effective
direction of the Group.

During the year, the Board at all times met the requirements of
the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
INED with at least one INED possessing appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
INED of his independence pursuant to the requirements of the
Listing Rules. The Company considers all INED to be independent
in accordance with the independence guidelines set out in the
Listing Rules.

Board meetings

The Board meets regularly throughout the year to discuss the
overall strategy as well as the operation and financial performance
of the Group. A total of 4 board meetings were held during the
year. The individual attendance record of each Director at the
meetings of the Board, the Remuneration Committee and the
Audit Committee during the year ended 31 December 2012 is set
out below:
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS HTES
Mr. Yang Yirong (Chairman) BRATE(EE) /1
Mr. Gong Xionghui BiEELs 11
Ms. Lu Jiahua EFRERZT 0/1
Mr. Han Huan Guang BEOLEAE il
Mr. Lin Zhigang MRS & 0/1
NED FHTES
Mr. Feng Tao BEREAE

(Vice Chairman) (BI1£/E) 01
INED BUFHTES
Mr. Yau Fook Chuen ER2EE 11
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John BEBEE /1
Mr. Lau Wang Yip, Derrick ARELE 1/1

4/4 11 - -
4/4 - - -
4/4 - 4/4 -
4/4 11 4/4 -
4/4 - - -
0/4 - - -
4/4 11 4/4 3/3
4/4 11 4/4 3/3
4/4 11 4/4 3/3
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The Board (continued)

Board meetings (continued)

Notices of regular board meetings are served to all Directors
at least 14 days before the meetings while reasonable notice is
generally given for other Board meetings. Agenda and Board
papers together with complete and reliable information are sent
to all Directors at least 3 days before each Board meeting to keep
the Directors apprised of the latest developments and financial
position of the Company and to enable them to make informed
decision. Minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings
are kept by the Company Secretary. Draft minutes are normally
circulated to Directors for comment within a reasonable time
after each meeting and the final version is open for Directors’
inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction
which involves a conflict of interest for a substantial shareholder
or a Director, will be considered and dealt with by the Board
at a duly convened board meeting. The Company’s Articles of
Association also contain provisions requiring Directors to abstain
from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for
approving transactions in which such Directors or any of their
associates have a material interest.

Training for Directors

Each newly appointed director receives comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his appointment,
so as to ensure that he has appropriate understanding of the
business and operations of the Company and that he is fully
aware of his responsibilities and obligations under the Listing
Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

There are also arrangements in place for providing continuing
briefing and professional development to directors whenever
necessary.

During the year, the directors have attended various in-house
briefings and internal or external seminars/trainings, and have
read internal or external newsletters, updates and other reading
materials covering topics such as business of the Company,
corporate governance, industry knowledge, regulatory updates,
finance and management.

Appointment, rotation and re-election of Directors

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, all newly
appointed directors of the Company shall hold office until the next
general meeting and shall then be eligible for re-election. Every
Director, including those appointed for a specific term shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years at
the AGM. The retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election.
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The Board (continued)

Appointment, rotation and re-election of Directors
(continued)

In accordance with article 108(A) of the articles of association of
the Company, Mr. Yang Yirong and Ms. Lu Jiahua will retire as
Directors by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election as Directors at the 2013 AGM.

According to code provision A.4.3 of the CG Code, if an INED
serves more than nine years, any further appointment of such
INED should be subject to a separate resolution to be approved
by the shareholders. Mr. Yau Fook Chuen (“Mr. Yau”) and Mr.
Wong Yik Chung, John (“Mr. Wong”) have been appointed as
INED for nine years. The Company has received from Mr. Yau
and Mr. Wong the confirmations of independence according to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. They have not engaged in any
executive management of the Group. Taking into consideration of
their independent scope of work in the past years, the Directors
consider Mr. Yau and Mr. Wong to be independent under the
Listing Rules despite the fact that they have served the Company
for nine years. The Board believes that their continued tenure
brings considerable stability to the Board and the Board has
benefited greatly from their presences who have over time gained
valuable insight into the Group.

Term of appointment of NED and INED

All NED and INED were appointed for an initial term of not more
than one year and will be renewable automatically for successive
term of one year until terminated by not less than three months’
notice in writing served by either party or the other. All NED and
INED are subject to retirement by rotation once every three years
and are subject to re-election.

Indemnification

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal actions against its Directors and officers. The
Board reviews the extent of this insurance annually.

Company Secretary

The company secretary of the Company, Mr. Lam Kwok Kin, is
responsible for ensuring that board procedures comply with all
applicable laws, rules and regulations and advising the Board on
corporate governance matters. He is also responsible for taking
and keeping minutes of all Board and board committee meetings.
Draft version of minutes is normally circulated to the Directors
for comment within a reasonable time after each meeting and
the final version of which is open for the Director’s inspection.
Moreover, the Company Secretary is responsible for keeping all
Directors updated on Listing Rules, regulatory requirements and
internal codes of conduct of the Company. He has attained no
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the
year.
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The Board (continued)

Segregation of Roles of Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer (“CEO”) (continued)

The Company has not yet adopted A.2.1. Under the code
provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of Chairman and CEO
should be separate and would not be performed by the same
individual. The division of responsibilities between the Chairman
and CEO should be clearly established and set out in writing.

The Company does not presently have any officer with the title
CEO. At present, Mr. Yang Yirong, being the Chairman and
the President of the Company, is responsible for the strategic
planning, formulation of overall corporate development policy
and running the business of the Group as well as the duties of
Chairman. The Board considers that, due to the nature and extent
of the Group’s operations, Mr. Yang is the most appropriate
chief executive because he possesses in-depth knowledge and
experience in fine chemicals business and is able to ensure
the sustainable development of the Group. Besides, he is the
founder, the chairman and the controlling shareholder of the
Group since its establishment and till now. Notwithstanding the
above, the Board will review the current structure from time to
time. When at the appropriate time and if candidate with suitable
leadership, knowledge, skills and experience can be identified
within or outside the Group, the Company may make the
necessary amendments.

Board Committees

The Board has established three committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established
with defined written terms of reference which deal clearly with
their authority and duties. The terms of reference of the Board
committees are posted on the Company’s website and are
available to shareholders upon request.

The chairmen of the committees will report the findings and
recommendations of the committees to the Board after each
meeting. The minutes of all meetings of the committees are
circulated to the Board for information.
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Board Committees (continued)

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three INED, namely Mr. Yau
Fook Chuen (the chairman of the committee), Mr. Lau Wang Yip,
Derrick and Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John, in which Mr. Yau Fook
Chuen possesses the appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

(a) To review the financial statements and reports and
consider any significant or unusual items raised by the
qualified accountant or external auditor before submission
to the Board;

(b) To review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process
by reference to the work performed by the external
auditor, their fees and terms of engagement, and make
recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of external auditor; and

(c) To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company’s financial reporting system, internal control
system and risk management system and associated
procedures.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee held three
meetings with the senior management to review, consider and
approve the interim and annual financial statements, discuss
internal controls matters and the re-appointment of the external
auditor. The Audit Committee has also reviewed the Group’s
accounting principles and practices, listing rules and statutory
compliance and financial reporting matters.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three INED, namely, Mr.
Wong Yik Chung, John (the chairman of the committee), Mr. Lau
Wang Yip, Derrick and Mr. Yau Fook Chuen and two executive
Directors, Mr. Han Huan Guang and Ms. Lu Jiahua.

The primary responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
include establishing a formal and transparent procedures for
developing policy on the remuneration of the Executive Directors
and senior management, making recommendations to the Board
on the Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration
of Directors and senior management, to review and approve
performance-based remuneration by reference to corporate goals
and objectives resolved by the Board from time to time, ensuring
the remuneration packages are sufficient to attract and retain the
Directors to run the Company successfully, to avoid over-paying
and ensure no Director or any of his associates will participate in
deciding his own remuneration.
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Remuneration Committee (continued)

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee held
four meetings to review and consider the remuneration policy
and packages, including any discretionary management bonus of
the Executive Directors and senior management by reference to
market conditions, performance of the Group and the individual
and corporate goals.

Senior management emolument

The remuneration of the senior management of the Group by
band for the year ended 31 December 2012 is set out below:
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established in March 2012 and it
comprises two executive Directors, namely Mr. Yang Yirong (the
chairman of the Committee) and Mr. Han Huan Guang and three
INED, namely, Mr. Yau Fook Chuen, Mr. Lau Wang Yip and Mr.
Wong Yik Chung, John. The duties of the Nomination Committee
are, among others, to review the structure, size and composition
of the Board and to make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board and on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships. The Nomination Committee held
one meeting during the year to review the Terms of Reference of
Nomination Committee.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding the
Directors’ securities transactions on terms not less exacting than
the required standard set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Specific enquiry has
been made to all Directors and all the Directors have confirmed
that they have complied with all the relevant requirements as set
out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December
2012.

ECOGREEN FINE CHEMICALS GROUP LIMITED e {554t TEBAER AT

REZER

RABZEEN2012F3AKY - YEEMBHITE
EHRMEE(ZESER) REBREEUR=E
BYFRTESEREAE BRELERERR
S - REZBEENBEA(EFEE)RNESS
2R - ABIRARK  URBEESSEDLNEM
B LRkEREENATHEESREZZ -
FE RELZEBCERTXEE  UEHRERZ
BevBEHE -

ETESFXZNEESTA

ARFCHRHN—EFRESETESXHNTRT
A RRTER LR RS0 EMBEITAE
FETEFRXZINEETA([RETA ) ORER
£ ARREMERERELARSH ME2RE
ENEER RERBE_T——F+-A=1+—
BISE-—ERTHRETRMSEMBEERBATE -



Corporate Governance Report

As vy \\
EREAWE

Responsibilities in Respect of the Financial
Statements

The management provides such explanation and information to
the Board to facilitate an informed assessment of the financial and
other information put before the Board for approval.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements which give a true and fair view and the
statement of the independent auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in
the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 45 and 46.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, price-
sensitive announcements and other financial disclosures required
under the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.
Meanwhile, the Directors are responsible for ensuring that
appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied
consistently; and that judgments and estimates made are prudent
and reasonable. The Board was not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that might cast
significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. The Board has prepared the financial statements on a
going concern basis.

Internal Controls

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining a sound
and effective internal control system of the Group. The system
includes a defined management structure with limits of authority,
safeguards its assets against unauthorized use or disposition,
ensures the maintenance of proper accounting records for the
provision of reliable financial information for internal use or for
publication, and ensures compliance with relevant laws and
regulations. The system is designed to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss,
and to manage the risks of failure in the Group’s operational
systems and in the achievement of the Group’s objectives.

The Directors, through the Audit Committee, have conducted
an annual review of the effectiveness of the system of internal
control of the Company and its subsidiaries. The review covers all
material controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions.

External Auditor

During the year, PricewaterhouseCoopers, the external auditor of
the Company received approximately RMB1.76 million for audit
services provided to the Group. The external auditor did not
provide any non-audit service to the Group during the year under
review.
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Shareholders' Rights and Investor Relations

(1)

(2

General Meeting

Under the Listing Rules, any vote of shareholders at a
general meeting will be taken by poll except where the
Chairman, in good faith, decides to allow a resolution
which relates purely to a procedural or administrative
matter to be voted on by a show of hands. Details of the
poll procedures are included in all notices/circulars to
shareholders and will be explained during the proceedings
of meetings. Poll results will be posted on the website of
the Stock Exchange and the Company subsequent to the
close of the shareholders meeting.

The general meetings of the Company provide an
opportunity for communication between the shareholders
and the Board. The Chairman of the Board as well as
the Chairmen of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee or, in their
absence, other members of the respective committees,
are available to answer questions at the shareholders’
meetings. Separate resolutions are proposed at general
meetings on each substantial issue, including the election
of individual directors.

During the year, one general meeting was held on 28 June
2012, which is the 2012 annual general meeting. The
attendance record of the Directors, on a named basis, is
set out in the table on page 19 of this report.

Under the code provision A.6.7, INED and NED should
attend general meetings and develop a balanced
understanding of the views of shareholders. Mr. Feng Tao
was unable to attend the AGM of the Company held on 28
June 2012 due to other important engagements. All other
INED and NED had attended the 2012 AGM to answer
questions and collect views of shareholders.

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene
Extraordinary General Meeting

The following procedures for shareholders (the
“Shareholders”, each a “Shareholder”) of the Company
to convene an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”) of
the Company are prepared in accordance with Article 64 of
the articles of association of the Company:

(1) One or more Shareholders (the “Requisitionist(s)”)
holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition,
not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company having the right of voting at general
meetings shall have the right, by written notice (the
“Requisition”), to require an EGM to be called by
the Directors for the transaction of any business
specified therein;

@) Such Requisition shall be made in writing to the
Board or the company secretary of the Company
via email at the email address of the Company at
presidentoffice@ecogreen.com;
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Shareholders' Rights and Investor Relations
(continued)

(2) Procedures for Shareholders to Convene
Extraordinary General Meeting (continued)

3) The EGM shall be held within two months after the
deposit of such Requisition; and

4) If the Directors fail to proceed to convene such
meeting within twenty-one (21) days of the
deposit of such Requisition, the Requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the Requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Directors shall be reimbursed to the
Requisitionist(s) by the Company.

(3) Shareholders’ Communication

Corporation communications such as interim reports,
annual reports and circulars are sent to the shareholders
in a timely manner and are also available on the website
of the Company. The Company’s website provides the
shareholders with the corporate information, such as
principal business activities and latest development of
the Group. Also, it provides information on corporate
governance and corporate social responsibilities of the
Group as well as the compositions and functions of the
Board and the committees.

Shareholders are provided with contact details of the
Company, such as telephone hotline, fax number, email
address and postal address, in order to enable them to
make any query that they may have with respect to the
Company. They can also send their enquiries to the Board
through these means.

(4) Investor Relations

The Company continues to enhance communications
and relationships with its investors. Designated senior
management maintains regular dialogue with institutional
investors and analysts to keep them abreast of the
Company’s developments. Enquiries from investors
are dealt with in an informative and timely manner. To
promote effective communication, the Company also
maintains websites (www.ecogreen.com) where extensive
information and updates on the Company’s business
developments and operations, financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information are
posted.

By the Order of the Board
Yang Yirong
President

Hong Kong, 26 March 2013
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Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. YANG Yirong

Chairman and President

Chairman of Nomination Committee

Mr. Yang, aged 51, is the founder of the Group. He is responsible
for strategic planning and formulation of overall corporate
development policy for the Group. Mr. Yang holds a Bachelor’s
degree in science, majoring in chemistry from Huagiao University
in 1982. Prior to founding the Group in 1994, Mr. Yang has
extensive experience in the fine chemical manufacturing and
trading and has more than ten years of experience in natural
organic chemistry research.

Mr. GONG Xionghui

Senior Vice President — Engineering Project Management

Mr. Gong, aged 49, is responsible for project construction and
strategic investment development. Mr. Gong holds a Master’s
degree in chemical engineering from Xiamen University and
has accumulated over 20 years of experience in fine chemicals
industry and qualified as an ISO 9000 auditor in the PRC in 1998.
He joined the Group in September 1999.

Ms. LU Jiahua

Senior Vice President — Group Financial Control

Member of Remuneration Committee

Ms. Lu, aged 46, oversees the finance and accounting and
human resources functions for the Group in the PRC. She has
over 20 years of experience in accounting, financial management,
administration management and internal auditing in a number
of pharmaceutical and fine chemical manufacturing enterprises.
Ms. Lu holds a Bachelor’s degree and a Master’s degree in
economics and corporate management from Xiamen University.
She joined the Group in April 2002.

Mr. HAN Huan Guang

Senior Vice President — Group Strategic Investments and Capital Markets
Member of Remuneration Committee

Member of Nomination Committee

Mr. Han, aged 51, responsible for Group strategic investments,
capital markets and investor relations. He graduated from
Zhongshan University (1L A&) with a Bachelor’s degree
in biochemistry in 1982 and obtained his Master’s degree
in Business Administration from University of Technology,
Sydney, Australia in 1993. He has over 20 years’ experience in
corporate finance, merger and acquisition, infrastructure and
new technology developments, management of listed and non-
listed companies in the PRC and overseas. Over the years, he has
been a Director, and then Managing Director in China Everbright
Medicine Co. Ltd. (a subsidiary of China Everbright Holdings
Group), Livzon Pharmaceutical Group Inc. and in other senior
management positions in Hong Kong, Singapore and Mainland
companies. He has been appointed as a Councilor of the China
Society of Biotechnology, and also member of some professional
associations in the region. Mr. Han joined the Group in September
2005 as a non-executive director, and became an executive
director from May 2006.
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Directors (continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. LIN Zhigang

Vice President — Group’s Aroma Chemicals Business

Mr. Lin, aged 42, is responsible for the management of the
Group’s operation in aroma chemicals business. He holds
a Bachelor’s degree of economics obtained from Xiamen
University. Prior to joining the Group in June 1996, he worked in
a foreign investment enterprise and has concrete experience in
sales and marketing management, business development and
production management.

Non-executive Director

Mr. FENG Tao

Vice Chairman

Mr. Feng, aged 45, is the Chief Executive Officer of NewMargin
Ventures Capital Co. Ltd., which is a leading venture capital
management company in China. Commencing from 1999, Mr.
Feng has been serving as the vice president officer (2]Z1E) of
The Foundation of Science & Technology for Development of the
State Planning Committee, State Economic & Trade Commission
of the PRC (FEAREFMBEREEE HZEE) and Chinese
Academy of Sciences. As one of pioneer of venture-capital of
China, Mr. Feng possesses extensive experience and knowledge
of both domestic and overseas markets. Mr. Feng was awarded
the title of “Top 10 most influential venture capitalists in China” in
the “Asia-Pacific Venture Capitalist Summit and Most Influential
Venture Capitalists in China Award Ceremony” in April 2005. He
obtained a Master’s degree in science from the Department of
Statistics and Applied Probability of University of Alberta in June
1992. He joined the Group in September 2005.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. YAU Fook Chuen

Chairman of Audit Committee

Member of Remuneration Committee

Member of Nomination Committee

Mr. Yau, aged 55, is a practising accountant and has over
20 years of experience in public accountancy practice which
covers company secretarial service, accountancy, auditing and
taxation. He is a member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Yau is currently the proprietor of Yau & Wong,
Certified Public Accountants in Hong Kong. He was appointed as
an Independent Non-executive Director in February 2004.
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Directors (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. WONG Yik Chung, John

Chairman of Remuneration Committee

Member of Audit Committee

Member of Nomination Committee

Mr. Wong, aged 46, among being the Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company, was also served as an Independent
Non-executive Director of Golden Resources Development
International Limited, CDW Holdings Limited and General Steel
Holdings Inc, companies listed in Hong Kong, Singapore and the
United States respectively. He is a professional accountant by
training with more than 18 years of experience in auditing and
corporate finance work, with extensive exposure to the business
enterprise in the PRC. Mr. Wong is currently the director to
TMF China, a firm provides a variety of professional outsourcing
solutions to an international client base investing in PRC. Mr.
Wong graduated from the University of Melbourne. He is a fellow
member of the Australian Society of Certified Public Accountants
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He also obtained a PRC Certificate of Independent Directorship
in 2002. He was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director in February 2004.

Mr. LAU Wang Yip, Derrick

Member of Remuneration Committee

Member of Audit Committee

Member of Nomination Committee

Mr. Lau, aged 51, is the managing director of a financial
institution. He obtained a master degree of management science
in accounting and he has extensive experience in investment
banking.

Senior Management

Mr. XIE Rong Guo

Vice President — Strategic Resources Management

Mr. Xie, aged 50, Head of Strategic Resources Management
Center. Since he joined Ecogreen, Mr. Xie has been the
management positions in purchase department, logistic
department and commercial department and the general
manager of strategic resources management. He has excellent
professional knowledge and rich experience in supply chain
management and strategic resources management.
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Senior Management (continued)

Mr. Y1 Zhi Xiong

Vice President — Corporate Administration

Mr. Yi, aged 51, Head of Corporate Administration. Mr. Yi
majored in fine chemicals in Tianjin University with a Bachelor’s
degree of engineering. He has been the head of management
in a large manufacturing company before he joined Ecogreen in
September 1998.

Mr. WONG Cang Yan

Head of President Office

Mr. Wong, aged 55, Head of President Office. Mr. Wong received
Bachelor’s degree of management science from National Chiao
Tung University. Before joining Ecogreen in July 2007, Mr. Wong
has 28 years work experience in enterprise management. During
2003 to 2005, he was the management consultant of Ecogreen,
helping the Group to build the daily management system.

Mr. YAN Da Yi, David

General Manager — Marketing and Sales of Aroma Chemicals

Mr. Yan, aged 52, General Manager of the Marketing and Sales
of Aroma Chemicals, Mr. Yan holds a Bachelor’s degree of
Engineering. Mr. Yan has 27 years work experience in Canada,
Hong Kong and China. Before joining the Group in May 2004,
he worked for eight years in a well-known software company
in Hong Kong, for positions in marketing, sales, servicing and
administrative departments.

Mr. XIAO Li Yuan

Aroma Chemicals Operations Manager

Mr. Xiao, aged 49, Director of Aroma Chemicals Operations.
Before joining the Group in February 2001, he was the deputy
manager in a large chemical enterprise. Mr. Xiao has more than
27 years experience of production management.

Mr. TU Hong Bin

Aroma Chemicals R&D Manager

Mr. Tu, aged 45, Aroma Chemicals R&D Manager, who received
a Ph.D degree in 1995 from Beijing Institute of Technology.
After the postdoctoral research experience with Professor
Alan.R.Katritzky at University of Florida of USA (2001-2004),
he joined Ecogreen in May 2005. He has more than 14 years
experience in organic synthesis and methodology including 3
years preparation and production of Heterocyclic compounds.

Mr. LAM Kwok Kin

Financial Controller and Company Secretary

Mr. Lam, aged 39, is the financial controller and company
secretary of the Company. He holds a Bachelor’'s degree in
accountancy and is a fellow member of both the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Prior to joining the Group in October
2003, he worked with an international accounting firm for seven
years and was the financial controller and company secretary of
a company listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lam has extensive
experience in auditing, accounting, budgeting and company
secretarial works.
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Directors’ Report
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The directors (the “Directors”) of EcoGreen Fine Chemicals
Group Limited (the “Company”) are pleased to present their
annual report together with the audited financial statements of the
Company and of its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2012.

Principal activities and geographical analysis of
operations

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Group are the research and development,
production and sale of fine chemicals products from natural
resources for use in aroma chemicals and pharmaceutical
products, and the trading of fine chemicals products and natural
materials.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business
and geographical segments is set out in Note 5 to the financial
statements.

Subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December
2012 are set out in Note 9 to the financial statements.

Results and dividends

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012
are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 51.

An interim dividend of HK1 cent per share, amounting to a
total of about HK$4,834,000 (equivalent of approximately
RMB3,951,000), was paid to shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) on 18 October 2012.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HK4.1 cents per share to the Shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members on 7 June 2013. Together with the
interim dividend, this will bring the total dividend distribution for
the year to HK5.1 cents (2011: HK4.68 cents) per share, resulting
in an aggregate dividend of about HK$24,652,000 (equivalent of
approximately RMB19,964,000) for the year ended 31 December
2012.

Reserves

Details of movements in reserves of the Group during the year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on page 53. Details of movements in other reserves of the Group
and of the Company during the year are set out in Note 17 to the
financial statements.
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Property, plant and equipment

Movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during
the year are set out in Note 7 to the financial statements.

Share capital

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in Note 16 to the financial statements.

Distributable reserves

Distributable reserves including retained earnings of the Company
at 31 December 2012 amounted to RMB315,785,000 (2011:
RMB312,713,000).

Purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s
listed securities

During the year, the Company made the following purchases of
its own shares on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”):
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Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of B UA FFFEES - ADQ TS ETAWE R 5 E

its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s shares during the year.

Pre-emptive rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association and there was no restriction against such
rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

Financial summary

A summary of the results and of the financial positions of the
Group for the past five financial years is set out on page 124.

RAFERBL - HERBERAR R Z ER/END

BriEERE

ARABAZHBERANTERBELEERE IR
E o MRBERASREED > ZSENLERS - A
RABRRLPIMBRBRRIZ2EEHEND -

g%

AEBBEREAMBRFEZEERTBRABEZE
RE1248 -

ANNUAL REPORT 2012 ¢« —&— — 43§



Directors’ Report
EEERE

Directors

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yang Yirong (Chairman & President)
Mr. Gong Xionghui

Ms. Lu Jiahua

Mr. Han Huan Guang

Mr. Lin Zhigang

Non-executive Director (“NED(s)”)
Mr. Feng Tao

Independent Non-executive Directors (“INED(s)”)
Mr. Yau Fook Chuen

Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John

Mr. Lau Wang Yip, Derrick

In accordance with article 108(A) of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. Yang Yirong and Ms. Lu Jiahua, will retire from
office by rotation and, being eligible, offers themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

According to code provision A.4.3 of the Corporate Governance
Code (“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”), if an INED serves more than nine years, any
further appointment of such INED should be subject to a separate
resolution to be approved by the shareholders. As Mr. Yau Fook
Chuen and Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John have been appointed as
INED for nine years, they will retire from office as INED and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election as INEDs at the annual
general meeting.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract which is not determinable
by the Group within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

The NEDs and INEDs were appointed for an initial term of not
more than one year and will be renewable automatically for
successive term of one year until terminated by not less than
three months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other.

APPOINTMENT OF INEDs

The Company has received, from each of the INEDs, an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the INEDs are
independent.
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Directors’ interests in contracts

Details of the related party transactions are set out in Note 35 to
the financial statements.

Save for the above, no contracts of significance in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party, and in which a Director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at year-
end or at any time during the year.

Biographical details of Directors and senior
management

Biographical details of Directors and senior management are set
out on pages 28 to 31.

Directors’ emoluments

Details of Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to Section
161 of the Companies Ordinance and Appendix 16 of the Listing
Rules are set out in Note 25(b) to the financial statements.

Arrangements to purchase shares or debentures

At no time during the year was the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors
or chief executives of the Company or their spouses or children
under 18 years of age to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate with the exception of the Company’s share
option scheme, details of which are set out in the following
section under the heading “Share options”.

Directors’ and chief executives’ interests and/or
short positions in shares, underlying shares and
debentures

At 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions of the
Directors, chief executives and their associates in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”)), which were recorded
in the register maintained by the Company under Section 352
of the SFO; or which were notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or
which were otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Companies contained in the Listing Rules,
were as follows:
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EEERE

Directors’ and chief executives’ interests and/or EEZ=ER{THEAZHARH - HERHEE
short positions in shares, underlying shares and 4 2#EE KB (E)
debentures (continued)

(a) Long positions in ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of (a) RAATSREE0.10EBTLBERZIFA
the Company

Mr. Yang Yirong 400,000 - 197,264,158 - 197,664,158 40.89%
SR A E (Note a)

(Fitzta)
Mr. Gong Xionghui - - 11,368,421 2,050,000 13,418,421 2.78%
L3 ilas (Note b)

(B=tb)
Ms. Lu Jiahua - - 8,526,316 1,650,000 10,076,316 2.08%
ERELL (Note ¢)

(BifzEe)
Mr. Han Huan Guang 1,200,000 - = - 1,200,000 0.25%
BEKEE
Mr. Lin Zhigang - - - 1,800,000 1,800,000 0.37%
SR &
Mr. Feng Tao 1,200,000 - = - 1,200,000 0.25%
Mr. Yau Fook Chuen 100,000 - - 200,000 300,000 0.06%
FREEE
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John 100,000 = = 200,000 300,000 0.06%
BERALE
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Directors’ and chief executives’ interests and/or
short positions in shares, underlying shares and
debentures (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Long positions in ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of
the Company (continued)

Notes:

(@) These shares were beneficially owned by Marietta Limited,
a private company beneficially wholly-owned by Mr. Yang
Yirong.

(b) These shares were beneficially owned by Dragon Kingdom
Investment Limited, a private company beneficially wholly-
owned by Mr. Gong Xionghui.

(c) These shares were beneficially owned by Sunwill Investments
Limited, a private company beneficially wholly-owned by Ms.
Lu Jiahua.

Interest in share options of the Company

Share options, being unlisted physically settled equity
derivatives, to subscribe for the ordinary shares of the
Company were granted to Directors, chief executives,
employees and certain participants pursuant to the
approved Company’s share option scheme. Information in
relation to these share options during the year ended 31
December 2012 are set out in the following section under
the heading “Share options”.

Interest in registered share capital of a Company’s
subsidiary

Other than the interest disclosed above, a Director also
hold nominee shares in certain subsidiaries held in trust
for the Group solely for the purpose of ensuring that the
relevant subsidiary has more than one member.

Other than as disclosed above, neither the Directors nor
any chief executives, nor any of their associates, had
any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares, or debentures of the Company or its associated
corporation as at 31 December 2012.

HERTRAHNRG - ERERARE
HEETZNRBKRE(E)

(a)

(b)

(c)

RAQXTERHEELIOELEBERZHFR
(%)
i -

(@) ZEBRNMUBBRRELEERS2EREBZRA
A AMarietta Limited B 25 A °

(b) FZEBROUNBREELLEES2ERBZAMA
‘A\]Dragon Kingdom Investment Limited &
mHEA o

(©) ZEBRONERERLESZ2ERBZAUA

A FSunwill Investments Limited B 287 A °
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Share options

The following is a summary of the Company’s share option
scheme (the “Scheme”), which was approved and adopted
pursuant to a written resolution of the shareholders of the
Company passed on 16 February 2004, disclosed in accordance
with the Listing Rules:

1. Purpose of the Scheme

The Scheme is to enable the Group to grant options to
selected participants as incentives or rewards for their
contributions to the Group.

2. Participants of the Scheme

All directors, employees, suppliers of goods or services,
customers, persons or entities that provide research,
development or other technological support to the Group,
shareholders and advisers or consultants of the Group are
eligible to participate in the Scheme.

3. Total number of shares available for issue under the
Scheme

The total number of shares of the Company (the “Shares”)
which may be allotted and issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Scheme and any other
share option scheme adopted by the Company must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in issue on
21 July 2004, the date of approval of the refreshment
of the General Scheme Limit (as defined below) by the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”).

The Company may renew the 10% limit with Shareholders’
approval provided that each such renewal may not
exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of the
Shareholder’s approval (the “General Scheme Limit”).

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet
to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme adopted by the Company must
not in aggregate exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from
time to time.

As at 12 April 2013, being the latest practicable date prior
to the issue of the annual report, options to subscribe for
a total of 8,030,000 Shares were still outstanding under
the Scheme which represents approximately 1.7% of the
Shares in issue.
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Share options (continued)

4.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company, the
total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
the exercise of the options granted to each participant
(including both exercised and outstanding options) under
the Scheme or any other share option scheme adopted by
the Company in any 12-month period must not exceed 1%
of the issued share capital.

The period within which the shares must be taken up
under an option

An option must be exercised in accordance with the
terms of the Scheme at any time during a period to be
determined and notified by the Directors to each grantee,
which period may commence from the date of the offer for
the grant of option is made, but shall end in any event not
later than 10 years from the date on which the offer for the
grant of the option is made, subject to the provisions for
early termination thereof.

The minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised

Unless otherwise determined by the Directors and stated
in the offer for the grant of options to a grantee, there is no
minimum period required under the Scheme for the holding
of an option before it can be exercised.

The period within which payments or calls must or
may be made or loans for such purposes must be
repaid and the amount payable on application or
acceptance of the option

An option may be accepted by a participant within 21 days
from the date of the offer for the grant of the option and the
amount payable on acceptance of the grant of an option is
HK$1.

The basis of determining the exercise price

The exercise price is determined by the Directors and
being not less than the highest of:

a. the closing price of the Company’s shares as
stated in the daily quotation sheet of the Stock
Exchange for trade in one or more board lots of the
Company’s shares on the date of the offer for the
grant;
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Share options (continued)

8. The basis of determining the exercise price (continued)

b. the average closing price of the Company’s shares
as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of the offer for the grant; and

ch the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

9. The remaining life of the Scheme

The Scheme will end on 15 February 2014, after which
no option can be granted under the Scheme. However,
options that remain outstanding as at 15 February 2014
can be exercised until their respective expiry dates.

The following table discloses details of share options outstanding
as at 31 December 2012 under the Scheme and the movements
during the year.

fERE(E)

8.

BETREZEEE)

b. ARRBENREZZRRLBEEE
BRfhEEXBERIMEARER
FroF R E &

& ARABPAD 2 EIE

&t BIRI BRI
HEBR-_T-ME_ATRBER - HE
TRRBFERBBRE - Rif > R=2F—
ME—A+ARMRITERZERER] TT
# BEEHSAEMABAL -

TREAN -_F——F+-A=+—BREHEH
RTEZBEEFBRENFRNZES) -

Category 1 -Directors ~~ $ERl1-E2

Mr. Gong Xionghui L Ji3 86.2004 187 86.2004-76.2014 2,050 - - - 2,050
Ms. Lu Jiahua EXERL 8.6.2004 137 8,6.2004-7.6.2014 1,650 - - - 1,550
Mr. Lin Zhigang WERILE 86.2004 187 86.2004-76.2014 1,800 - - - 1,800
Mr. Yau Fook Chuen ER2%E 8.6.2004 137 8,6.2004-7.6.2014 200 - - - 200
Mr. Wong Yk Chung, John ~ EZ& %4 8.6.2004 137 8,6.2004-7.6.2014 200 - - - 200
Sub-total It 5,800 - - - 5,800
Category 2- Ehl2- 8.6.2004 137 8,6.2004-7.6.2014 2,230 - - - 2,230

Employees under HEEE

continuous =HEs

employment contract
Sub-total NG 2,280 - - - 2,280
Total &t 8,030 - - - 8,030

ECOGREEN FINE CHEMICALS GROUP LIMITED e fia%s4{t TEBBER AR



Directors’ Report
EEERE

Interest and/or short positions of shareholders REZRSNKIEKRHBETFIREZIRFE

N

discloseable under SFO 58/ IRE

As at 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions of R-FT——&+-_A=+—H BRESRAAFT
the persons, other than the Directors and chief executives of the — BEFHAIINZ ATRAERATRM RABERNDT - #
Company, in the shares and underlying shares of the Company, BREBEESRIAEEGIEXVEIE2 R3NP He K
which were notified to the Company pursuant to Division 2 and NE AN TIRIEE SRS IRGIE3361KE ER
3 of Part XV of the SFO; or which were recorded in the register &2 SR MAARIE RS RABIT ¢

required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of

the SFO, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the RAATSREE0I0BTZER TR
Company

Marietta Limited 195,389,158 - = - 195,389,158 40.42%
(Note a)
(MtzEa)
Keywise Capital - 72,302,000 - - 72,302,000 14.96%
Management (HK)
Limited
Keywise Greater 53,022,000 - - - 538,022,000 10.97%
China Opportunities
Master Fund
FMR LLC — 48,448,000 - — 48,448,000 10.02%
Platinum Investment
Management Limited - 34,130,000 - - 34,130,000 7.06%
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Interest and/or short positions of shareholders
discloseable under SFO (continued)

Long positions in ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the
Company (continued)

Notes:

(@) These shares were registered in the name of and beneficially owned by
Marietta Limited, the entire issued share capital of which was directly
and beneficially owned by Mr. Yang Yirong.

Other than as disclosed above, the Company has not been
notified by any persons, other than the Directors and chief
executives of the Company, who had interest or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as at 31
December 2012.

Management contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group
were entered into or existed during the year.

Major customers and suppliers

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s largest and the
five largest customers were 22.4% and 39.1% respectively. The
aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s largest and the
five largest suppliers were 8.4% and 34.9% respectively.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder of the
Company, which to the knowledge of the Directors, owned more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital, had any interest
in the share capital of the Group’s five largest customers and five
largest suppliers noted above.

Continuing connected transactions and directors’
interests in contracts

A summary of the related party transactions entered into by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2012 is contained in
Note 35 to the financial statements. The transactions in relation to
the Group’s purchase of raw materials from Chuxiong Hongbang
Forestry Co., Ltd. (“Chuxiong Hongbang”) and its associates,
as described in the following paragraphs, fall under the definition
of continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules for
which relevant announcements, if necessary, had been made by
the Company in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Chuxiong Zhongyi Forestry Trading Co. Ltd. (“Chuxiong
Zhongyi”) is a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
which is principally engaged in the sale of forestry products.
70% of the equity interest in Chuxiong Zhongyi is beneficially
owned by the Company while the remaining 30% equity interest
is beneficially owned by Chuxiong Hongbang, a private company
incorporated in the Peoples’ Republic of China with limited liability
and owned by third parties independent of the Company and
connected persons of the Company.
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Continuing connected transactions and directors’
interests in contracts (continued)

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, Chuxiong Hongbang and its
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) are connected persons
of the Company. Therefore, any transaction between the Group
and Chuxiong Hongbang and its associates will constitute a
connected transaction of the Company for the purposes of
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, and may be subject to the
reporting, announcement and/or independent shareholders’
approval requirements contained in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

The following table is a summary of the transaction amounts
of the continuing connected transactions of the Group with
Chuxiong Hongbang for the years ended 31 December 2012.

TERERGREZ2ENER(F)

RIBEETHRRA - BHELABREBEA (R LR AR
VAR BN RBINEEA o Bl - A5 E 815
HREBEAZRNRZHEK EHRAF4AE
FEARRNEER S  WAET EWRAFE14A
BFBARE®R DMK RBILERIAENRE

TRABE-_Z——_F+_A=+—HIEFERBE
RAEEERELAFEREIINI D HRERE -

RMB’000
ARBFT
Chuxiong Hongbang Purchase of raw materials
and its associates BB RME
pal: TINEYNEN: 3 PN 8,614

The aforesaid continuing connected transactions have been
reviewed by the INED of the Company.

The INED confirmed that the aforesaid continuing connected
transactions were entered into (a) in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group; (b) either on normal commercial
terms or on terms no less favourable to the Group than terms
available from independent third parties; and (c) in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing them on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified
letter containing the findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions above in accordance with
paragraph 14A.38 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. A copy of the
auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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Continuing connected transactions and directors’
interests in contracts (continued)

Save as disclosed above:

(i) no contracts of significance subsisted to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly at the end of the years ended
31 December 2012 or at any time during the years; and

(if) there were no transactions which need to be disclosed
as connected transactions in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules.

Corporate governance

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with
most of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (effective
until 31 March 2012) and the Corporate Governance Code
(effective from 1 April 2012) contained in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December 2012, save
for the deviations from code provision A.2.1 and A.6.7 of the CG
Code. Information on the deviations and further information on
the Company’s corporate governance practices is set out in the
“Corporate Governance Report” as set out on pages 17 to 27.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to and within
the knowledge of the Directors, it is confirmed that there is
sufficient public float of more than 25% of the Company’s issued
shares at the date of the annual report.

Auditor

The accompanying financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Directors
Yang Yirong
Chairman & President

Hong Kong, 26 March 2013
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Independent Auditor’s Report
8 M A% B A ¥R

_E
pwc

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ECOGREEN FINE CHEMICALS GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
EcoGreen Fine Chemicals Group Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 47 to
1283, which comprise the consolidated and company balance
sheets as at 31 December 2012, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any person for
the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

Rk R E
Bob A T EBAR A AR
(REE B B2 ERAF)

AZERRD (LA T [HMD) EFEZIENE47E
123E R BRAEISEEERARA( AR ]) REHK
BAR(HAEEEMNEHUBERSE LAY
BREREER-ZE——F+_A=1T—HHEMHEK
PEIEERBEREHEZALFEMNEGHKREE
EHE2ERER  AHRZEDHERNEHRESRE
£ UREZESHBRREREMNFREER -

EENAHMBRRBERAIENSE

BERRERRAAARBEEEGHMASEMNETE
MBRELEREE(RBGEIDNEBERERES
HHBRR - U HUBRRIEHERTMAFH
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ERIEH] - AR S ISR T FE BN AR
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H PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F, Prince’s Building Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com

FEERKEGEATERAT BB RAFAE221E
& - +852 2289 8888, (EE - +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2012, and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 26 March 2013
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
EPHEERER

As at 31 December 2012 A - ——F+_-_A=+—H

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
M ARETT AREFT
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets FEREBEE
Land use rights + b {55 A 6 9,079 9,310
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB NERE 7 384,008 387,922
Intangible assets EREE 8 50,081 44,795
Investments in associates B & 10 8,924 6,691
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTESHEE 22 2,623 5,215
Available-for-sale financial assets At HES R EE 11 200 200
454,915 454,133
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 12 114,683 151,306
Trade receivables FEULBR 5K 13 377,348 362,122
Prepayments and other T8 - 20 R E A FE U R
receivables 14 131,743 128,436
Derivative financial instruments TTEemT A 21 151 2,838
Pledged bank deposits B ZIRITER 15 98,271 110,988
Cash and cash equivalents BHERIREEEY 15 833,919 581,724
1,556,115 1,337,414
Total assets BB E 2,011,030 1,791,547
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EEkas
Equity attributable to owners EERBBREAQAREEE
of the Company
Share capital [N 16 50,781 50,872
Share premium A& A (B 16 199,470 200,383
Other reserves H 17 79,141 64,703
Retained earnings REBEF
- Proposed final dividend — Bk AR HIRR B 31 16,013 13,635
— Others —Hip 840,737 747,097
1,186,142 1,076,690
Non-controlling interests JEIRE MR 3,025 3,145
Total equity BRER 1,189,167 1,079,835
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
EPHEERER

As at 31 December 2012 A - ——F+_-_A=+—H

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
M ARETT AREFT
LIABILITIES af&
Non-current liabilities IRBERE
Borrowings ==y 18 2,300 114,696
Derivative financial instruments TESmT A 21 - 973
Deferred income tax liabilities EILFEHAasE 22 18,200 14,000
20,500 129,669
Current liabilities RBERE
Trade payables and bills payable R N EN ZE 19 267,408 241,784
Current income tax liabilities BIEAFRS M a & 7,976 5,281
Borrowings ==t 18 494,308 299,297
Derivative financial instruments TTEEmT A 21 564 5,445
Accruals and other payables FEt B R EMmERNR 20 30,337 29,322
Amount due to a director EN—EFHRIE 35 770 914
801,363 582,043
Total liabilities wasE 821,863 711,712
Total equity and liabilities HERKEE 2,011,030 1,791,547
Net current assets nEBEEFE 754,752 755,371
Total assets less current liabilities BEER AT 2B 1,209,667 1,209,504
YANG YIRONG LU JIAHUA
R E EXRE
Chairman Executive director
E4 HITEE

The notes on pages 55 to 123 are an integral part of these  H55F123EMiiF BZEAHMEHRELP R -
consolidated financial statements.
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Balance Sheet
EESER

As at 31 December 2012 A - ——F+_-_A=+—H

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
M ARETT AREFIT
ASSETS &=
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in and amounts due R B AT ZIEE RENK
from subsidiaries IEPNGIE S| 9 350,694 350,694
Current assets RBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG 9 114,985 204,678
Derivative financial instruments TSI A 21 - 2,838
Prepayments TEfTR 14 79 1,426
Cash and cash equivalents HeRESZEY 15 634 1,501
115,698 210,443
Total assets BEE 466,392 561,137
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners EEEBER
of the Company KAREEE
Share capital R 16 50,781 50,872
Share premium R A% (B 16 199,470 200,383
Other reserves H b iE & 17 94,229 94,138
Retained earnings RE AT
— Proposed final dividend — ¥R R EARR B 31 16,013 13,635
— Others —Hfh 6,073 4,557
Total equity RS 366,566 363,585
LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Borrowings TFE 18 - 96,946
Derivative financial instruments TSI A 21 - 973
- 97,919
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Balance Sheet
EESER

As at 31 December 2012 A - ——F+_-_A=+—H

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
M ARETT AREFIT

Current liabilities REAE
Borrowings & 18 97,121 94,840
Derivative financial instruments PTESBMTA 21 564 2,743
Accruals and other payables FEsTE R R AEMERMNK 20 2,141 2,050
99,826 99,633
Total liabilities wWEE 99,826 197,552
Total equity and liabilities BERREE 466,392 561,137
Net current assets REBEEFE 15,872 110,810
Total assets less current liabilities B2EER GBS R 366,566 461,504

YANG YIRONG LU JIAHUA
B R ExRE
Chairman Executive director
*E HITEFE

The notes on pages 55 to 123 are an integral part of these  $55F123E Mz AZEAHMBEREAEHILH o
consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Income Statement

aotlER

- By function of expenses — & & AL

AR

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HEZ—_FE——F+_A=+—HIFE

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
b= AR®ETF T ARKET T
Revenue WA B 1,057,371 1,074,688
Cost of goods sold BEEEmKA 24 (798,290) (837,734)
Gross profit EH 259,081 236,954
Other gains/(losses) — net Huukss /(BK)—F5 23 4,222 (9,488)
Selling and marketing costs $HE R TS #ER A 24 (27,455) (29,093)
Administrative expenses 1T E A 24 (48,352) (47,896)
Operating profit £ T 187,496 150,477
Finance income B fsUe 25 26 6,761 4,607
Finance costs BATE R AR 26 (30,254) (13,206)
Finance costs — net BTSN — JF 58 26 (23,493) (8,599)
Share of loss of associates FEAG B & 518 10 (267) (59)
Profit before taxation i BRI o A1) 163,736 141,819
Taxation A 27 (35,914) (23,084)
Profit for the year F[E % F| 127,822 118,735
Profit attributable to: EAEBR
Owners of the Company VNN F ey 127,942 119,058
Non-controlling interests FEPE M AE RS (120) (323)
127,822 118,735
Earnings per share attributable FESREFE
to owners of the Company RAARBEE
during the year (BRIAARESIR)
(expressed in RMB per share)
— Basic —HK 30 26.5 Centsfll | 24.6 Cents{ll
— Diluted — s 30 26.4 Centsfll | 24.4 Centsfll

The notes on pages 55 to 123 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

FEE5E123EMARZE R HUBRREH IS -
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BOFEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BEZ=—ZE——F+-_F=+—HILFE

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
ihg=2 ARBET T ARMET T
Profit for the year FEEA 127,822 118,735
Other comprehensive Hivzms(BX) :
income/(losses):
Currency translation differences 4N E =58 9 (65)
Other comprehensive FEHMEEmUE
income/(losses) for the year (18X @%E 9 (65)
Total comprehensive income FEXEWEELZE
for the year 127,831 118,670
Attributable to: BN
Owners of the Company AKRRHEEH 127,951 118,993
Non-controlling interests FEPE R A (120) (323)
Total comprehensive income FEZHWEEEE
for the year 127,831 118,670

The notes on pages 55 to 123 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
EHERBEX

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HEZ—_ZT——F+_A=+—HILtFE

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARRTR ARRTR ARRTR ARRTR ARRTR ARBTZ

Balance at 1 January 2012 R-E-=F

—-A-B2&e 50,872 200,383 64,703 760,732 1,076,690 3,145 1,079,835

Total comprehensive “E-CHRENEEE

income for 2012 - - 9 127,942 127,951 (120) 127,831
Repurchase of shares B0 @) (913) 91 - (913) - (913)
Dividend relating to 2011 AB-E——4E7RE - - - (13,635  (13,635) - (13,63)
Dividend relating to 2012 BE-E-——&7RE - - - (3,951) (3,951) - (3,951)
Transfer from retained REBFERE(FE17)

earnings (Note 17) - - 14,338 (14,338) - - -

Balance at 31 December 2012 W=FE-—F+=f

=t-He&s 50,781 199,470 79,141 856,750 1,186,142 3,025 1,189,167
Balance at 1 January 2011 R_B——F
-A-Br&s 49,232 181,841 65,515 660,922 957,510 3,468 960,978
Total comprehensive “E——FRENEEE
income for 2011 - - (65) 119,058 118,993 (323) 118,670
Issue of shares Bfkin 1,839 23,621 - - 25,460 - 25,460

Employee share option scheme: (B S E&R B2

- Exercise/cancellation ~11f /R R E
of share options - - (5,219) 5,219 - - -
Repurchase of shares EERH (199) (5,079) 199 = (5,079) = (5,079)
Dividend relating to 2010 BE-_Z——5F BB - - - (15,434) (15,434) - (15,434)
Dividend relating to 2011 BE-_Z——5F/R8 - - - (4,760) (4,760) - (4,760)

Transfer from retained RABFIEE (H3E17)
earnings (Note 17) - - 4,273 (4,273) - - -

Balance at 31 December 2011 WZE——F+Zf

St-Az&H 50,872 200,383 64,703 760,732 1,076,690 3,145 1,079,835

The notes on pages 55 to 123 are an integral part of these  H55F123EMiiF BZEAHMEHRELP R -

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
EHEESRER

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HEZ—_ZT——F+_A=+—HILtFE

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
ihg=2 AR®T T ARMET T

Cash flows from operating activities E&EFNIRESRE
Cash generated from operations REXEBEENERS 32 288,549 111,969
Interest paid SENEES (30,373) (24,808)
Income tax paid BERATSE (26,427) (25,284)
Net cash generated from operating &&¥5FT1FIRE F5E

activities 231,749 61,877
Cash flows from investing activities REFENIRESHRE
Additions to property, plant and e - BB KRR

equipment 7 (30,954) (22,420)
Additions to intangible assets | EEEM 8 (16,959) (5,339)
Addition to investment in an Bt 245 & 38N

associate 10 (2,500) (5,000)
Proceeds from disposal of HEME « BB KRG

property, plant and equipment 2 W 117 -
Net cash used in investing activities & EEFTAIR S F58 (50,296) (32,759)
Cash flows from financing activities FEZEHNRESHE
Interest received BUF B 6,761 4,607
Proceeds from issue of shares BT TSR - 25,460
Payment of repurchase of shares @& (913) (5,079)
Proceeds from borrowings EBEERER 468,608 351,737
Repayments of borrowings BEEE (385,993) (328,225)
Decrease in amount due e —F=FRIER D

to a director (144) (48)
Dividends paid AR B At (17,586) (20,194)
Net cash generated from BEEEMBHESFE

financing activities 70,733 28,258
Net increase in cash RERBEEEYIEMNFE

and cash equivalents 252,186 57,376
Cash and cash equivalents FHIzRERREEFEY

at beginning of the year 581,724 524,409
Exchange gains/(losses) on cash HERESEBYZEL

and cash equivalents Iezs,(FBK) 9 (61)
Cash and cash equivalents FRZBEERESEEY

at end of the year 15 833,919 581,724

The notes on pages 55 to 123 are an integral part of these 555123 BT AZEAMHMBHREER LD o

consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot F R MY

1. General information

EcoGreen Fine Chemicals Group Limited (“EcoGreen” or
“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”)
are principally engaged in the production and trading of fine
chemicals from natural resources for use in aroma chemicals and
pharmaceutical products.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 3
March 2003 as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The address of its
registered office is Century Yard, Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681 GT, George Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman
Islands, British West Indies.

The Company is listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“the Stock Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Chinese
Renminbi (RMB), unless otherwise stated. These consolidated
financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board
of Directors on 26 March 2013.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”), which include all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and interpretations issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
as modified by the revaluation of available- for-sale financial
assets, financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative
instruments) at fair value through profit or loss, which are carried
at fair values.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed
in Note 4.

1. —RER
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B e

RARR-ZEE=F=-A-BREMASEESAFA
ERESHESEMKX I AERRERAR o Ak
E R ACentury Yard, Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681 GT, George Town, Grand
Cayman, Cayman Islands, British West Indies °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B OB TS R R B BT

2.1
2.1.1

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

Amended standards and interpretation adopted by the
Group

The following amendments to standards are mandatory for
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012 but
are not relevant to the Group's operations:

Presentation of financial
statements

Deferred tax: Recovery of
underlying assets

HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

HKAS 12 (Amendment)

New standards and amendments to standards have been
issued but not effective for the financial year beginning on
or after 1 January 2012 and have not been early adopted:

Effective for
annual periods

beginning
on or after

HKAS 1 Presentation of financial 1 July 2012
(Amendment) statements

HASA 19 Employee benefits 1 January 2013
(Amendment)

HKAS 27 (Revised ~ Separate financial statements 1 January 2013
2011)

HKAS 28 (Revised  Associates and joint ventures 1 January 2013
2011)

HKAS 32 Financial instruments: 1 January 2014
(Amendment) Presentation on asset and

liability offsetting

HKFRS 1 First time adoption on 1 January 2013
(Amendment) government loans

HKFRS 7 and Mandatory effective date and 1 January 2015
HKFRS 9 transition disclosures
(Amendment)

HKFRS 7 Financial instruments: Disclosure 1 January 2013
(Amendment) on asset and liability offsetting

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments 1 January 2015

HKFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements 1 January 2013

HKFRS 11 Joint arrangements 1 January 2013

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in 1 January 2013

other entities
HKFRS 13 Fair value measurements 1 January 2013

HK(IFRIC)-Int 20 Stripping costs in the production

phase of a surface mine

1 January 2013

ECOGREEN FINE CHEMICALS GROUP LIMITED » 1554t TEEAR A A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot F R MY

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (continued)

(b) (continued)

HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

HKFRS 10 replaces the requirements in HKAS 27,
Consolidated and separate financial statements relating to
the preparation of consolidated financial statements and
HK-SIC 12 Consolidation — Special purpose entities. It
introduces a single control model to determine whether an
investee should be consolidated, by focusing on whether
the entity has power over the investee, exposure to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and the ability
to use its power to affect the amount of those returns.

The application of HKFRS 10 is not expected to change any
of the control conclusions reached by the Group in respect
of its involvement with other entities as at 1 January 2013.

The Group has commenced assessing the potential impact
of the other new and revised standards, amendments or
interpretations but is not yet in a position to determine
whether they would have a significant impact on its results
and financial position are prepared and presented.

2.2 Subsidiaries
2.2.1 Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities)
over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding of
more than one half of the voting rights. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible
are considered when assessing whether the Group controls
another entity. The Group also assesses existence of control
where it does not have more than 50% of the voting power but
is able to govern the financial and operating policies by virtue of
de-facto control. De-facto control may arise from circumstances
where it does not have more than 50% of the voting power but
is able to govern the financial and operating policies by virtue
of de-facto control. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances, income and expenses on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Profits
and losses resulting from inter-company transactions that are
recognised in assets are also eliminated. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot F R MY

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.2  Subsidiaries (continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(@) Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business
combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the
liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair values at
the acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis, either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s
identifiable net assets.

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of the aggregate of
the consideration transferred and the fair value of non-controlling
interest over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If this consideration is lower than the fair value of the
net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised
in profit or loss.

(b) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without
change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in
loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions — that is,
as transactions with the owners in their capacity as owners. The
difference between fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the
subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to
non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost is adjusted to reflect changes in consideration
arising from contingent consideration amendments. Cost also
includes direct attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the company on the basis of
dividend and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in
the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.3 Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding
of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments
in associates are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting. Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or
decreased to recognise the investor’s share of the profit or loss of
the investee after the date of acquisition. The Group’s investment
in associates includes goodwill identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised
in the consolidated income statement, and its share of post-
acquisition movements in other comprehensive income is
recognised in other comprehensive income with a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless
it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is
any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is
impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount
of the associate and its carrying value and recognises the
amount adjacent to ‘share of profit/(loss) of an associate’ in the
consolidated income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associate are recognised
in the Group’s financial statements only to the extent of
unrelated investor’s interests in the associates. Unrealised
losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of associates have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in investments in associates are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.4 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the Executive Directors.

2.5 Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Chinese Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the Company’s functional
and the Group’s presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated income statement, except when deferred in equity
as qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment
hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and
cash and cash equivalents are presented in the consolidated
income statement within ‘finance income or cost’. All other
foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated income statement within ‘other gains/(losses) — net.’

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in
a foreign currency classified as available-for-sale are analysed
between translation differences resulting from changes in
the amortised cost of the security, and other changes in the
carrying amount of the security. Translation differences related
to changes in the amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss,
and other changes in carrying amount are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and
liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss
are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or
loss. Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets
such as equities classified as available-for-sale are included in
other comprehensive income.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of
which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

(if) income and expenses for each income statement are

translated at average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are translated at the dates of
the transactions); and

(iif) all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of
a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate. Exchange differences
arising are recognised in equity.

2.6 Property, plant and equipment
2.6.1 Construction-in-progress

Construction-in-progress, representing buildings on which
construction work has not been completed and machinery
pending installation, is stated at historical cost, which includes
construction expenditures incurred, cost of machinery, and
other direct costs capitalised during the construction and
installation period, less accumulated impairment losses, if
any. No depreciation is provided in respect of construction-in-
progress until the construction and installation work is completed.
On completion, the construction-in-progress is transferred to
appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
2.6.2 Other property, plant and equipment

Other property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items. Cost may also include transfers from
equity of any gains/losses on qualifying cash flow hedges of
foreign currency purchases of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognized. All other repairs and maintenance are expensed in
the consolidated income statement during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate cost less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

Buildings

Plant and machinery
Leasehold improvements
Office furniture and equipment
Motor vehicles

30 to 40 years
5to 15 years
5to 10 years
51to 10 years
5to 10 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount and are recognised within ‘other
gains/(losses) — net’ in the consolidated income statement.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.7 Intangible assets
2.7.1 Research and development

Research expenditure is recognised as an expense as incurred.
Costs incurred on development projects (relating to the design
and testing of new or improved products) are recognised as
intangible assets when the following criteria are fulfilled:

(@) it is technically feasible to complete the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale;

(b) management intends to complete the intangible asset and
use or sell it;

(c) there is an ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

(d) it can be demonstrated how the intangible asset will
generate probable future economic benefits;

(e) adequate technical, financial and other resources to
complete the development and to use or sell the intangible
asset are available; and

() the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during
its development can be reliably measured.

Other development expenditures that do not meet these criteria
are recognised as an expense as incurred. Development costs
previously recognised as an expense are not recognised as an
asset in a subsequent period.

Capitalised development costs are recorded as intangible assets
and amortised from the point at which the asset is ready for use
on a straight-line basis over a period of five years.

2.7.2 Patents and technical know-how

Expenditure on acquired patents and technical know-how is
capitalised and amortised using the straight-line method over
its estimated useful life of 3 to 10 years, from the date when the
patents and technical know-how is available for use.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.8 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or are not yet available
for use are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
each reporting date.

2.9 Financial assets
2.9.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivable and available-for-sale. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determine the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition.

(@) Financial assets at fair value though profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial
assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified in this
category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the
short term. Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading
unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in this category
are classified as current assets if expected to be settled within 12
months; otherwise, they are classified as non-current.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets, except for maturities
greater than 12 months after the balance sheet date. These
are classified as non-current assets. The Group’s loans and
receivables comprise ‘trade and other receivables’, ‘pledged
bank deposits’ and ‘cash and cash equivalents’ in the balance
sheet (Note 2.12 and Note 2.13).
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.9 Financial assets (continued)
2.9.1 Classification (continued)

(c) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated in this category or not classified in any of the
other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless
the investment mature or management intends to dispose of the
investment within 12 months of the reporting period.

2.9.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade-date — the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at
fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried
at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair
value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value,
and transaction costs are expensed in the consolidated income
statement. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets
are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the
‘financial assets at fair value through profit or loss’ category are
presented in the consolidated income statement within ‘other
(gains)/losses — net’, in the period in which they arise. Dividend
income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
is recognised in the consolidated income statement as part of
other income when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary
securities classified as available-for-sale are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or
impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised
in equity are included in the consolidated income statement
as ‘gains and losses from investment securities’. Interest on
available-for-sale securities calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in the consolidated income statement.
Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised
in the consolidated income statement when the Group’s right to
receive payment is established.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.9 Financial assets (continueq)
2.9.3 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

2.9.4 Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred
only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors
or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable data indicate that there is
a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the consolidated income statement. If a loan or
held-to-maturity investment has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate determined under the contract. As a
practical expedient, the Group may measure impairment on the
basis of an instrument’s fair value using an observable market
price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as
an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of
the previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.9 Financial assets (continued)
2.9.5 Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired. For debt securities, the Group
uses the criteria referred to in (a) above. In the case of equity
investments classified as available-for-sale, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is
also evidence that the assets are impaired. If any such evidence
exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss —
measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in profit or loss — is removed from equity
and recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised
in the consolidated income statement on equity instruments
are not reversed through the consolidated income statement.
If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument
classified as available-for-sale increases and the increase can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed
through the consolidated income statement.

2.10 Derivative financial instruments and hedging
activities

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-
measured at their fair value. The method of recognising the
resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is
designed as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the
item being hedged. The Group designates certain derivatives as
hedges of a particular risk associated with a recognised asset
or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction (cash flow
hedge).

The Group documents at the inception of the transaction
the relationship between hedging instruments and hedged
items, as well as its risk management objectives and strategy
for undertaking various hedge transactions. The Group also
documents its assessment, both at hedge inception and on an
ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in hedging
transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values
or cash flows of hedged items.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot F R MY

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.10 Derivative financial instruments and hedging
activities (continued)

The fair values of various derivative instruments used for hedging
purposes are disclosed in Note 21. Movements on the hedging
reserve in shareholders’ equity are shown in Note 17. The full
fair value of a hedging derivative is classified as a non-current
asset or liability when the remaining maturity of the hedged item
is more than 12 months, and as a current asset or liability when
the remaining maturity of the hedged item is less than 12 months.
Trading derivatives are classified as a current asset or liability.

Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that
are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges are recognised
in other comprehensive income. The gain or loss relating to the
ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the consolidated
income statement within ‘other gains/(losses) — net’.

Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled in the consolidated
income statement in the periods when the hedged item affects
profit or loss (for example, when the forecast sale that is hedged
takes place). The gain or loss relating to the effective portion
of interest rate swaps hedging variable rate borrowings is
recognised in the consolidated income statement within ‘finance
costs’. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is
recognised in the consolidated income statement within ‘other
(gains)/losses — net’. However, when the forecast transaction
that is hedged results in the recognition of a non-financial asset
(for example, inventory or fixed assets), the gains and losses
previously deferred in equity are transferred from equity and
included in the initial measurement of the cost of the asset. The
deferred amounts are ultimately recognised in cost of goods sold
in the case of inventory, or in depreciation in the case of fixed
assets.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge
no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative
gain or loss existing in equity at that time remains in equity and is
recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised
in the consolidated income statement. When a forecast
transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or
loss that was reported in equity is immediately transferred to the
consolidated income statement within ‘other gains/(losses) — net’.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.11 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average method.
The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw
materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It excludes
borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

2.12 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary course of
business. If collection of trade and other receivables is expected
in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not,
they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment.

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with
banks and other short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less.

2.14 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or share options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,
from the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the company’s equity
share capital (treasury shares), the consideration paid, including
any directly attributable incremental costs (net of income taxes) is
deducted from equity attributable to owners of the company until
the shares are cancelled or reissued. Where such ordinary shares
are subsequently reissued, any consideration received, net of any
directly attributable incremental transaction costs and the related
income tax effects, is included in equity attributable to owners of
the company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.15 Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

2.16 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated income statement over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee
is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it
relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

2.17 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred
tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in the
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the
tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the Company’s subsidiaries and
associates operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

(b) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, the deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at
the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the
balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets
and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities
where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.19 Employee benefits
2.19.1 Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when
they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date. Employee entitlements
to sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised until the time
of the leave.

2.19.2 Share-based compensation

(@) Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based compensation
plans, under which the entity receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments (share options) of the Group.
The fair value of the employee services received in exchange for the
grant of the share options is recognised as an expense. The total
amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value
of the share options granted:

° including any market performance conditions (for example,
an entity’s share price);

° excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (for example, profitability,
sales growth targets and remaining an employee of the
entity over a specified time period); and

° including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for
example, the requirement for employees to save).

Non-market performance and service conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are expected to
vest. The total expense is recognised over the vesting period,
which is the period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied. In addition, in some circumstances
employees may provide services in advance of the grant date and
therefore the grant date fair value is estimated for the purposes
of recognising the expense during the period between service
commencement period and grant date. At the end of each
reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the number
of options that are expected to vest based on the non-marketing
performance and service conditions. It recognises the impact
of the revision to original estimates, if any, in the consolidated
income statement, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the company issues new shares.
The proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction
costs are credited to share capital (nominal value) and share
premium.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.19 Employee benefits (continued)
2.19.2 Share-based compensation (continued)

(b) Share-based payment transactions among group entities
The grant by the Company of share options over its equity
instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings in
the Group is treated as a capital contribution. The fair value
of employee services received, measured by reference to the
grant date fair value, is recognised over the vesting period as
an increase to investment in subsidiary undertakings, with a
corresponding credit to equity.

2.19.3 Pension obligations

Group companies operate various defined contribution plans.
The plans are generally funded through payments to trustee-
administered funds.

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the
Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The
Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current
and prior periods. The Group pays contributions to publicly or
privately administered pension insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when
they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments
is available.

2.20 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Restructuring provisions comprise lease termination penalties and
employee termination payments. Provisions are not recognised
for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.20 Provisions (continued)

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase
in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

2.21 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable for
goods supplied, stated net of discounts returns and value added
taxes. The Group recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured; when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the entity; and when specific criteria
have been met for each of the Group’s activities. Revenue is
recognised as follows:

(a) Sales of goods

Sales of goods are recognised when a group entity has delivered
products to the customer, the customer has accepted the
products and collectibility of the related receivables is reasonably
assured.

(b) Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.
When a loan and receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the
carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated
future cash flow discounted at the original effective interest rate of
the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as interest
income. Interest income on impaired loans is recognised using
the original effective interest rate.

(c) Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

2.22 Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease.

ECOGREEN FINE CHEMICALS GROUP LIMITED » 1554t TEEAR A A

2. IEREFTHRBEE)

220 #BfE (&)
BREFATMNERRBRENTEEAREKH T H
REE  ZMERBREFTSESEEEENS
RAE TS E A BB ey 5F(h o BB 2 B ) 4 25 M 48 0 &y %
BHEARNSER -

221 WHRER

IWAZRBE WK EREEN AR BEFE - WHEER
HEE QA EUEIE - BRI - REMIZERE
BN o BWARSREENT] R E 8 RREEF
HBRAIERABEEE  REASESEIZHHF
& BB - W TIR THIE R ER -

@  #HEER
HEEMmINEEEBRAEFINER  MEFPD
BB REM - I & WEOR AT I E AR B8 e W R IR

=7
7o

)  FlEMKE

B TR A ERFFORMER o 5 3N R YK
HHBRE - A% E g Rk EEREE A K E 5K
B A ARREREZTAZREERA XS
RERE THESTRFELERRNE K -
EREERZ SRR E R R R o

)  BFFHE
B EE A TR M (R 78 U 4 BY S AT IER - M AN SR B
SN AMBN T GER  BSERAREOMRER
REEERAR -

222 #HE

MEERZEERAE 2 RBD R &R A L HE
AMBRERE  —#HALEHE - RELEHA
&3 2 3 E (0 8t A UREE 0B i
%) REEHRUNESEEIREHFRERASHE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.23 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and Company’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by
the Company’s shareholders.

2.24 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments
when due, in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Such financial guarantees are given to banks to support banking
facilities granted to subsidiaries.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial
statements at fair value on the date the guarantee was given.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Company’s liabilities under
such guarantees are measured at the higher of the initial amount,
less amortisation of fees recognised in accordance with HKAS
18, and the best estimate of the amount required to settle the
guarantee. These estimates are determined based on experience
of similar transactions and history of past losses, supplemented
by the judgement of management. The fee income earned is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the life of the guarantee.
Any increase in the liability relating to guarantees is reported in the
consolidated income statement within other operating expenses.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables of
subsidiaries are provided for no compensation, the fair values are
accounted for as contributions and recognised as part of the cost
of the investment in the financial statements of the Company.

3. Financial risk management

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s financial assets include cash and cash equivalents,
trade, other receivables and derivative financial instruments. The
Group’s financial liabilities include borrowings, trade and other
payables and derivative financial instruments.

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign exchange risk, fair value interest
rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance. These risks are limited by the Group’s financial
management policies and practices described below.
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3. Financial risk management (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(@ Credit risk

The Group has policies in place to ensure that liquid funds are
placed with financial institutions registered with sound credit
standing in Mainland China and Hong Kong. Sales of products
are made to customers with appropriate credit history. The Group
performs credit evaluations on its customers.

Trade receivables are due within two to three months from the
date of billing. As at 31 December 2012, 79% of the total trade
receivables were due within three months (2011: 55%).

As at 31 December 2012, the five largest customers accounted
for approximating 36% of the trade receivable carrying amount
(2011: 40%).

The Group considers the largest customers are financially healthy
with no significant credit risk.

The maximum exposure to credit risk represents the carrying
amounts of trade receivables in the balance sheet.

Quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables are set out in Note 13.

(b) Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements
and its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The following tables detail the remaining contractual maturities
at the balance sheet date of the Group’s and the Company’s
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted
cash flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the
balance sheet date) and the earliest date the Group and the
Company can be required to pay.

Where the loan agreement contains a repayable on demand
clause which gives the lender the unconditional right to call
the loan at any time, the amounts repayable are classified in
the earliest time bracket in which the lender could demand
repayment.
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3.  Financial risk management (continued) 3. H¥RREREE)
3.1  Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 HEERBEZEE)
(b)  Liquidity risk (continued) (b)  RBEZEREE)

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARBTR ARETR

At 31 December 2012 RZB-ZF+ZA=+-H

Borrowings Bt 496,608 515,430 514,731 463 223 13
Derivative financial instruments TESRIE 564 564 564 - - -
Trade payables and bills payable ~ ENERRERER 267,408 267,408 267,408 - - -
Accruals and other payables B ERREMEMNT 17,131 17,131 17,131 - - -
At 31 December 2011 R-ZE—&F+-A=1—H

Borrowings B 413,993 430,001 311,580 115,323 2,028 1,070
Derivative financial instruments fTESRIE 6,418 6,418 5,445 973 - -
Trade payables and bills payable et B3t R BN E 241,784 241,784 241784 = = =
Accruals and other payables EAERREMEMNT 25,138 25,138 25,138 - - -

At 31 December 2012 RZB-—%4+-A=+-H

Borrowings b 97,121 99,532 99,532 - - -
Derivative financial instruments fTESRIA 564 564 564 - - -
Accruals and other payables B ERREMENT 2,141 2,141 2,141 - - -
Financial guarantees to subsidiaries B &R THB A Al 247,714 251,265 250,861 404 = =
At 31 December 2011 RZE——F+-A=1+-H

Borrowings e 191,786 200,443 101,080 99,363 - -
Derivative financial instruments fTELRIA 3,716 3,716 2,743 973 - -
Accruals and other payables EAERREMEMNE 2,050 2,050 2,050 - - -
Financial guarantees to subsidiaries B ##ER FHBA 115,724 121,662 74,354 31,967 15,341 -
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3. Financial risk management (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(c) Cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates as the Group
has no significant interest-bearing assets. The Group’s exposure
to changes in interest rates is mainly attributable to its bank
borrowings. Bank borrowings at variable rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest-rate risk. Bank borrowings at fixed
rates expose the Group to fair value interest-rate risk. Details
of the Group’s bank borrowings are disclosed in Note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements. The Group analyses its interest
rate exposure on a dynamic basis and to hedge its variable rate
by fixed rate instruments, when necessary. Various scenarios
are simulated taking into consideration refinancing, renewal of
existing positions, alternative financing and hedging. Based on
the various scenarios, the Group manages its cash flow interest
rate risk by using floating-to-fixed interest rate swaps. Such
interest rate swaps have the economic effect of converting
borrowings from floating rates to fixed rates. Generally, the Group
raises long-term borrowings at floating rates and swaps them
into fixed rates. Under the interest rate swaps, the Group agrees
with other parties to exchange, at specified intervals (primarily
semi-annually), the difference between fixed contract rates and
floating-rate interest amounts calculated by reference to the
agreed notional amounts.

During 2012 and 2011, the Group’s borrowings at variable rate
were denominated in United States dollars (“USD”), RMB and
Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”).

It is estimated that a general increase/decrease of 50 basis points
as at 31 December 2012 in bank borrowing interest rates for
bank loans with all other variables held constant would decrease/
increase the profit after taxation by approximately RMB2,466,000
(2011: RMB2,030,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming that
the change in interest rates had occurred at the balance sheet
date and had been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for
non derivative financial instruments in existence at that date.
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3. Financial risk management (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(d) Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Mainland China with most of the
transactions settled in RMB. Foreign exchange rate risk arises
when future commercial transactions or recognised assets and
liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not the entity’s
functional currency.

The Group’s assets and liabilities, and transactions arising
from its operations primarily do not expose to material foreign
exchange risk. Other than certain trade receivables, cash and
cash equivalents, borrowings and derivative financial instruments
denominated in USD and HKD, details of which have been
disclosed in Note 13, Note 15, Note 18 and Note 21, respectively.
The Group’s assets and liabilities are primarily denominated in
RMB. Other than approximately 23% (2011: 39%) of the sales
are denominated in USD and certain expenses in HKD, the
Group mainly generates RMB from sales in Mainland China to
meet its liabilities denominated in RMB. During the year ended
31 December 2012, the Group entered into foreign exchange
contracts to manage its foreign currency risk.

RMB has experienced certain appreciation in recent years which
is the major reason for the exchange losses arising from operating
activities and exchange gain arising from financing activities
recognised by the Group for the years ended 31 December 2012
and 2011. Further depreciation or appreciation of USD and HKD
against RMB will affect the Group’s financial position and results
of operations.

A 1% strengthening/weakening RMB against USD and HKD
as at the respective balance sheet dates would increase/
decrease profit after taxation by approximately RMB1,143,000
(2011: RMB1,194,000) and by approximately RMB288,000
(2011: RMB135,000), respectively, mainly as a result of foreign
exchange gain/loss on translation of USD and HKD denominated
bank borrowings.

(e) Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk because
certain investments held by the Group are classified as available-
for-sale financial assets. As the amount of such financial assets is
not material to the Group, the exposure to price risk is considered
to be insignificant.

The Group purchases turpentine as one of its major raw materials
for its manufacturing process, and is exposed to fluctuation in its
market price. The Group does not use any derivative instruments
to reduce its economic exposure to the change in price of raw
materials.

3. UREREEE

3.1 UHEREREGE)

@  sMNEmSE

AEBET2EPEAMBEER - REBEARFIR
5 BENBEOUTBEAREEE - ERKEHE
RHRECHREEMABENTEEBLIFZEED
MRS - SNERBESESE °

AEENEEHRABURERBRERINRZERE
WESRINERR - BB TERER  BeRkER
HELEA  EEURTAESR I AENUETRE T
BB RIRME13 « BisE15 « KizE18 &M sE21
BTN AEBNEENBBEEIEUAREE -
B #123% (=T ——4 : 39%) M IHE AR TTETHEN
EEFTAELTEIII  REBETRRAHEE B R
ARE . DEMZARBHENEE - AEEINE
R AEBERBEE-Z——F+-_A=+—H1it
FEFBHRPINESR o

MFEAREZERE  BEAKRERBE-_T——F
A—B——F+ A=+ HIFEERLLED
ELANENBERBETHELNEL RENE
cERRABTRARBE-FREXTEGEY
EREENP AR ML LS -

REHRBEEER  AREBAETRBLHE &
Bi1neoREm BB HREZNHOARE
1,143,000 (=F——F : AR™1,194,00070) &
AR #288,000(=F——4F : AR¥135,000
L) TERABEUET R B TAEMNRITER
FriSHE 5 &R, EE -

(e  (EfEEE
HRAKREMFHETREDEEAIHEEESHE
E SAKSEERHREAZESBRER ARZED
REEZSRUAEEMFTLIEAN - REREAR
WRB/TEK °

AEBERBLEBIERELEEBRENTRREMF -
YEHTIZERKE -  AEEYEEREFITET
EDORE R RHE 1K 8) < SB R

ANNUAL REPORT 2012 ¢« — & — — 43§



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB F R R A

3. Financial risk management (continued)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital
on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net
debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total
borrowings (including current and non-current borrowings as
shown in the consolidated balance sheet) less cash and cash
equivalents. Total capital is calculated as “equity”, as shown in
the consolidated balance sheet, plus net debt.

During 2012, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged from
2011, was to maintain the debt equity ratio to be in a net cash
position. The net cash amounts at 31 December 2012 and 2011
were as follows:

3. B¥EREERE(E)

3.2 EtEBER

AEBNESCEERE  —RREAESEGEES
B UARERIRELR RN AR MEREE ARER
&% FRERSRENELAEBIUREESKA -

RTHEFRAEELNGRE  AEETEERHEN
FTRENKSEE  MERDIKNERRE - #17
#ix ek & B E ARRETS o

BEANEMAR K ARENAAGRLXERE
B o W ERZREFFERANBELRTE - B
FREARER(BEAHEEREBERMAYINEHMIE
BHERORERERREEHEY - BEARR [Ha]
(e GEERBERMI) MERFHE

AEBE T —FHNEBRE T ——FHEMES
T BBOIBBELEREREFREKE - #EZ
T——FR-_T——F+-A=+—H FR&Z
ST

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARBT T

Total borrowings (Note 18) BEE(MEE18) (496,608) (413,993)
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B BeREeEEY

(Note 15) (KizE15) 833,919 581,724

Net cash SRS 337,311 167,731

The increase in the net cash position during 2012 resulted
primarily from the increase in net cash generated from operating
activities.

E ECOGREEN FINE CHEMICALS GROUP LIMITED e {554t TEBAER AT

—E-HFFERSKPENEIEEASKREEBME
W HEEE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot F R MY

3. Financial risk management (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

HKFRS 7 requires disclosure of fair value measurements by level
of the following fair value measurement hierarchy:

° Level 1 — Quoted price (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities. The Group does not have this
type of financial instruments.

° Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices). As at 31 December 2012, the Group had foreign
currency forward contracts with fair values RMB151,000
and RMB Nil recognised as assets and liabilities
respectively (2011: RMB2,838,000 and RMB5,445,000)
and derivatives used for hedging of RMB564,000 (2011:
RMB973,000).

° Level 3 — Inputs for asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs). As
at 31 December 2012, the Group had available-for-sale
financial assets of RMB200,000 (2011: RMB200,000) that
are within this category.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an
active market is determined by using valuation techniques. These
valuation techniques maximise the use of observable market
data where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2. If
one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable
market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments
include:

o The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the
present value of the estimated future cash flows based on
observable yield curves.

o Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis,
are used to determine fair value for the remaining financial
instruments.
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4. Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below.

(a) Estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives
and related depreciation charges for its property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on the historical experience of
the actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar
nature and functions. It could change significantly as a result
of technical innovations and competitor actions in response to
market conditions. Management will increase the depreciation
charge where useful lives are less than previously estimated
lives or it will write off or write down technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

(b) Estimated impairment of intangible assets and trade
receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of intangible
assets and trade receivables based on an assessment of
the recoverability of intangible assets and trade receivables.
Provisions are applied to intangible assets and trade receivables
where events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
balances may not be recoverable. The identification of impairment
requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such difference
will impact the carrying value of intangible assets and trade
receivables and provision for impairment in the period in which
such estimate has been changed.

(c) Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and selling expenses. These estimates are based
on current market conditions and the historical experience of
manufacturing and selling products of similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes in customer taste
and competitor actions in response to changes in market
conditions. Management reassesses these estimates at each
balance sheet date. During the year ended 30 December 2012,
a provision for impairment of inventories of RMB166,000 (2011:
RMB17,168,000) is recognised in the consolidated income
statement within cost of goods sold.
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4. Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(continued)

(d) Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong and Mainland
China. Significant judgement is required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination
is made.

(e) Research and development costs

Critical judgement by the Group’s management is applied when
deciding whether the recognition requirements for development
costs have been met. This is necessary as the economic success
of any product development is uncertain and may be subject to
future technical problems at the time of recognition. Judgements
are based on the best information available at each balance sheet
date. In addition, all internal activities related to the research and
development of new products is continuously monitored by the
Group’s management.

5. Turnover and segment information

(a) Turnover

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing of fine
chemicals from natural resources for use in aroma chemicals and
pharmaceutical products and the trading of natural materials and
fine chemicals. Turnover for the Group represents revenue from
the sale of goods.

4. EBEXREFHEAF RAEE)
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5. HEBEKDIHER

(a) BT

AEFBTBREMARAEREEBMIBR - A
ARFEELERRBEERUAREERARE LB
MBE -  AEFELCERENHEESRAELEZX

N9)
Zs o
I

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Sale of goods (net of value-added tax) HEER(BNBEER) 1,057,371 1,074,688

(b) Segment information

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as
the Executive Directors. The Executive Directors review the
Group’s internal reporting in order to assess performance and
allocate resources. The Executive Directors have determined
the operating segments based on these reports. The Executive
Directors consider the business from product perspective.

(b) SEEH

HITEFRIBRERRE - WTEFHMNAKHE
MABRE - UFHERREDEER - BITERE
HZEREENLEN - WITEFKEMARER
XBOMEE -
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5.  Turnover and segment information (continued)

(b) Segment information (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group was organised
into two main operating segments:

(M
@)

manufacturing and selling of fine chemicals; and
trading of natural materials and fine chemicals.

The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2012 are as
follows:

5. HEBRERIBER(E)

(b) DEBER (&)
HE-Z——F+-A=1+—HBEE KAE=EH A
MAEBLLEDEL

) HEENEERBMALESR

) BEERARM MIEMAEER -

BE_Z——H+ A=+t HILFEZOMEE
LUNNE

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T AR®ET T
Revenue g
Manufacturing HE 840,418 938,412
Trading 25 216,953 136,276
Total revenue BT S 1,057,371 1,074,688
Segment results DEEE
Manufacturing HE 221,680 203,672
Trading “5 9,946 4,188
Unallocated corporate expense — net AOBERARIEH—F8 (44,130) (57,383)
Finance costs, net R - FRE (23,493) (8,599)
Income tax expense Frs iR (35,914) (23,084)
Share of loss of an associate FE (B2 B 1R (267) (59)
Profit for the year IR S5 A 127,822 118,735
Other segment items included in the consolidated income  stAA#HRERZEMAIIBEE LT
statement are as follows:
Manufacturing Trading
HE 25

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT | ARETT | ARBTT AR®ETT
Depreciation (Note 7) e (FzE7) 34,664 31,691 86 123
Amortisation (Notes 6 and 8) #4445 (Ffi3r6%8) 9,551 9,963 - =
Provision for impairment of B EERERE
intangible assets (Note 8) (F1=E8) 2,353 3,499 - =
Provision for impairment of FEREBERE
inventories (Note 12) (MizE12) 166 17,168 - -
Provision for/(reversal of) JEWBR FURE R (B )
impairment of trade (MF3%13)
receivables (Note 13) 525 1,082 (138) (94)
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5.  Turnover and segment information (continued) 5. HEZEERODHER(E)
(b) Segment information (continued) (b) DHERE)
The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2012 and RH-ZT——&+_A=+—HB2EAEREBEH I
capital expenditure for the year then ended are as follows: FEEZAIITEEZERAEOT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
Segment assets DEEE
Manufacturing HE 953,134 1,050,913
Trading = 103,071 22,184
Pledged bank deposits B 7 RITER 98,271 110,988
Cash and cash equivalents B RIRESEEY 833,919 581,724
Other corporate assets Hih AR EE 22,635 25,738
Total assets BEREAE 2,011,030 1,791,547
Segment liabilities DEEE
Manufacturing HE 235,712 210,856
Trading 25 35,116 38,998
Bank borrowings RITER 493,188 405,923
Deferred tax liabilities BELEHIBAR 18,200 14,000
Current income tax liabilities BIEAFTS R aE 7,976 5,281
Other corporate liabilities Hitv mlB & 31,671 36,654
Total liabilities BERE 821,863 711,712

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT

Capital expenditure EXREX
Manufacturing HE 47,902 27,659
Trading = 11 100

47,913 27,759

Segment assets consist primarily of land use rights, property, DHEETZBELMERE  WE  BHEER
plant and equipment, intangible assets, inventories and & BREE - FEREWHKIE - DB EBEL
receivables. Segment liabilities comprise operating liabilities. They & 8E - P ABERERERREIEE - HIAK
exclude items such as cash and cash equivalents, taxation and  AFRIEEZIER - EXAHAXBEWE - BEREB
corporate borrowings. Capital expenditure comprises additions  (Mi&E7) ARV E & (H17E8) 2 858 -

to property, plant and equipment (Note 7) and intangible assets

(Note 8).
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BT RRME

5.  Turnover and segment information (continued)

(b) Segment information (continued)

The Group’s sales within the two operating segments are made to
customers in three main geographical areas.

5. &4
(b) DEBER (&)

ERRDMER(E)

REBMAKLED N =EEZEMELE -

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBT T
Turnover -0

— Mainland China — B A 809,336 657,405

— Europe — BOM 111,593 175,398

— Asia (excluding Mainland China) — M (R BRI ER AN 50,970 109,378

— Others —H i 85,472 132,507
1,057,371 1,074,688

Sales are allocated based on the places/countries in which
customers are located.

HEBDREFPAENR, BRI -

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREEF T

Total assets BEHAE
— Mainland China — B A 1,975,105 1,725,912
- Hong Kong —&5 31,621 58,286
— Others —Hfh 4,304 7,349
2,011,030 1,791,547

Total assets are allocated based on where the assets are located.

No geographical analysis of capital expenditure is presented as
substantially all of the Group’s capital expenditure was incurred in
respect of assets located in Mainland China.

Revenues of RMB236,133,000 (2011: RMB292,299,000) and
RMB89,028,000 (2011: RMB111,096,000) are derived from two
major customers. These revenues are mainly attributable to the
manufacturing segment.

E ECOGREEN FINE CHEMICALS GROUP LIMITED e fia%s4{t TEBBER AR

BERETIREEMEMDR

AR AKERBABYBEARIRUNPEARLZE
EES AT EEHEARI ZHBED T -

REMEEEZRF M R A236,133,000 T
ARB(ZZF——4% : 202,299,000t A R ) &
89,028,0007T A R#E(=ZZF ——4F : 111,096,0007T
ARE) c WEWRETBREEENT ©
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SO R SRR AT

TifERE-KE

The Group’s interests in land use rights represent prepaid REBR T FEREZEREENSERERE -
operating lease payments and their net book values are analysed HEIEEEES>TOT
as follows:

6. Land use rights - Group 6.

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFTT

In Mainland China, held on: RABERMES
Leases of between 10 to 50 years 10E50FHE 9,079 9,310

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBT T
At 1 January —H—H 9,310 9,541
Amortisation of prepaid operating TR R & T & SR IE A 55
lease payments (Note 24) (Ft3E24) (231) (231)
At 31 December +—A=+—H 9,079 9,310
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M= - BEN&E-&E

7. Property, plant and equipment — Group 7.

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT  ARBTr ARETR ARETR ARETR  ARETx
At 1 January 2011 W=%--5-A-H
Cost AR 125,118 306,422 10,333 3,415 73,217 518,505
Accumulated depreciation RithE (18,464) (93,364) (5,946) (3.415) = (121,189)
Net book amount REFE 106,654 213,058 4,387 - 73,217 397,316
Year ended 31 December 2011  HZE-F——%
+-R=t+-ALEE
Opening net book amount EREFE 106,654 213,058 4,387 = 73217 397,316
Additions NE = 1,213 746 898 19,563 22,420
Transfers B - 407 - - (407) -
Depreciation (Note 24) FE (M) (3,649 (26,386) (1,481) (298) - (31,814)
Closing net book amount FIRIREFE 103,005 188,292 3,652 600 92,378 387,922
At 31 December 2011 RZE——F
+=A=t-R
Cost A 125,118 308,042 11,076 4,313 92,373 540,922
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (22,113) (119,750) (7,424) (3713) = (153,000)
Net book amount REFE 103,005 188,292 3,652 600 92,378 387,922
Yearended 31 December 2012 HZ-Z-_f
+-A=t+-ALEE
Opening net book amount EMEESE 103,005 188,292 3,602 600 92,373 387,922
Addtions NE - 1,968 1,362 - 27,624 30,954
Transfers B 29,673 80,860 - - (110,533) -
Disposals HE - ) (1) - - (118)
Depreciation (Note 24) FE (M) (4,029 (29,161) (1,388) (172) - (34,750)
Closing net book amount FRIEEFE 128,649 241,952 3,515 428 9,464 384,008
At 31 December 2012 W-E-—%
+2A=t-R
Cost WA 154,791 390,839 12,197 4313 9,464 571,604
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (26,142) (148,887 (8,682) (3,885) - (187,596)
Net book amount REFE 128,649 241,952 3,515 428 9,464 384,008

AEBMZEFRERETFTA 138,113,000t AR
(ZZ——4%F : 167,554,000t ARE) - BRHERA
WEELH - HEABS0F - DRIR UL 4F
+=—A - ZEONE+_-_A  —ER=FAAK_
T RHIOFM A [Em °

The Group’s buildings and buildings under construction, totalling
RMB138,113,000 (2011: RMB167,554,000) are in Mainland
China with lease terms of 50 years up to December 2047,
December 2048, May 2053 and April 2054, respectively.
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7. Property, plant and equipment - Group 7. Y% . BERRE-£B(Z)
(continued)

Depreciation expense of RMB31,510,000 (2011: #H&EBHHE$31,510,000t ARE(ZT——F :
RMB28,656,000) has been charged in ‘cost of goods sold’ 28,656,000 ARMEEEERKA R - M
and RMB3,240,000 (2011: RMB3,158,000) in ‘administrative  3,240,0007C A BRI (=Z——4F : 3,158,0007T A

expenses’. BORETA TTTERERIF -
Analysis of construction-in-progress is: ERTIESFTET
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBETT ARBET T

Construction costs of buildings EEREEK K 9,464 64,549

Cost of leasehold improvements and HEWERE BEX
plant and machinery MRS AR - 27,824
9,464 92,373
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8. Intangible assets — Group 8. RBEEE-£KB

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T AR¥T T AR¥T T
At 1 January 2011 R-—ZE——F—H—H
Cost %N 12,161 100,079 112,240
Accumulated amortisation R (7,369) (52,184) (59,553)
Net book amount R EFEE 4,792 47,895 52,687
Year ended 31 December 2011 BZ2-_ZE——%+=HA
=+—HIEE
Opening net book amount BRYIIREDFE 4,792 47,895 52,687
Additions NE - 5,339 5,339
Amortisation (Note 24) B an (FsE24) (1,293) (8,439) (9,732)
Provision for impairment (Note 24) TBERE(H5E24) (3,499) - (3,499)
Closing net book amount B IRTEDFE - 44,795 44,795
At 31 December 2011 N—E——&F
+t-A=t—H°
Cost B 12,161 105,418 117,579
Accumulated amortisation and EFtEE ORE
impairment (12,161) (60,623) (72,784)
Net book amount IREFE - 44,795 44,795
Year ended 31 December 2012 BE-_ZE—_—&F
+-A=t+—ALEE
Opening net book amount BRYIIREDFE = 44,795 44,795
Additions NG - 16,959 16,959
Amortisation (Note 24) #an (FsE24) = (9,320) (9,320)
Provision for impairment (Note 24) TBERE(H5E24) - (2,353) (2,353)
Closing net book amount B IRTEDFE - 50,081 50,081
At 31 December 2012 R-Z——fF
+t-A=t—H°
Cost AR - 122,377 122,377
Accumulated amortisation and RFtEE ORE
impairment - (72,296) (72,296)
Net book amount IR FE - 50,081 50,081

Notes:

Amortisation of RMB9,320,000 (2011: RMB9,732,000) is included in

9,320,000t AR 2 #$8( =T ——4 : 9,732,0007T

‘cost of goods sold’ in the consolidated income statement. ARE)EEHRRRPFIAEEERAEIA -
2,353,000t ARB 2 B EERBE(ZT——F :
3,499,000t ARK)EAH M ERPAATEEERK
IR -

(b) The provision for impairment of intangible assets of RMB2,353,000 (b)
(2011: RMB3,499,000) had been included in ‘cost of goods sold’ in
the consolidated income statement.
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ZIREREWHE LT

9. Investments in and amounts due from 9. EAIZTT%’D\E
subsidiaries - Company — N

RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T AREBT T
Unlisted investments, at cost FEETIRE - IRAE 91,713 91,713
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note a) FEUF B A F138IE (5Fa) 373,966 463,659
Interests in subsidiaries RHTB AR 2w 465,679 555,372
Less: S
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUH B A B 5RIB
— current portion (Note b) —mENEH (FEb) (114,985) (204,678)
Investments in and amounts due from RETB AR 2 1 E MR
subsidiaries — non-current portion BB D BIZIE — IER B E D 350,694 350,694
Notes: B3
(a) The balance includes amounts due from subsidiaries of (@) ZE B I R A B MY K8 $£258,981,0007T A
RMB258,981,000 (2011: RMB258,981,000) which are equity funding Ri#E(—ZF——14F : 258,981,000t AR ) -
in nature.
(o) The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest (o) FE LB B 1 B RIE AR R R - AP B R B R E SR (E
bearing and are repayable on demand. iR e

The particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company at 31 #HZE-_Z——F+_A=+—H A26ZHEA
December 2012: AR :

EcoGreen Fine Chemicals Limited (a) British Virgin Islands Investment holding US$95,000 100%
RERLEE  REEKR 95,000 7T

EcoGreen Fine Chemicals Manufacturing Limited British Virgin Islands Investment holding US$1 100%
EBRAHS RERKR E

EcoGreen Fine Chemicals B.V. Netherlands Sale of fine chemicals EUR18,000 100%
Gl HERMAER 18,0008 %

EcoGreen Holding B.V. Netherlands Investment holding EUR18,000 100%
i REER 18,0008 &

EcoGreen Investments Limited Hong Kong Investment holding HK$2 100%

PiaRM TEEER AR BB REER 28T

ANNUAL REPORT 2012 ¢ —&— £



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S Pt B TG R R M EE

RHE LR 2 RE R BB AR

MIE— D\ (E)

9. Investments in and amounts due from 9.
subsidiaries — Company (continued)

MEBARZFBEMT : (&)

The particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company at 31
December 2012: (continued)

Sino Bright International Trading Limited Hong Kong Inactive HK$10,000 100%
HEBREHARAT] 5 EmE% 10,00047T
Doingcom International Limited Hong Kong Trading of fine chemicals HK$20,000,000 100%
RIHER AR AR BB BEERMER 20,000,000%7C
Xiamen Doingcom Biotechnology Co., Ltd. (b) Mainland China Manufacturing of fine RMB50,000,000 100%
EF YR AR A F)0) HE At chemicals 50,000,0007T A R #

HERM SR
EEBEILEBRARDIC) Mainland China Research and development US$2,000,000 100%
(Shanghai Fine Chemicals Company Limited) (0)(c) F B At of fine chemicals 2,000,000%7T

RRRKFAERR 2R
Xiamen Doingcom Chemical Co., Ltd. (b) Mainland China Manufacturing and sale of RMB85,200,000 100%
EPYF L EBRAF(b) It fine chemicals 85,200,0007C AR

HERHERMEEm
BiERIEMEZ SERAF0)(0) Mainland China ~ Sale of forestry products RMB10,000,000 70%
(Chuxiong EcoGreen Forestry Trading Co., Ltd) (0)c) ~ FEI At HEMEER 10,000,0007C A R
EFHEESER AR Mainland China  Sale of fine chemnicals RMB20,000,000 100%
(Xiamen Doingcom Enterprise Limited) (b)(c) R A HERELER 20,000,0007T A R #
Xiamen Sinoloon Import and Export Co., Ltd. (o) Mainland China Inactive RMB7,000,000 100%
EFTHRELAERARBRATD) Bl A EmEHB 7,000,0007T A R#E
Xiamen Sinotek Enterprise Development Co., Ltd. (o) ~ Mainland China Manufacturing and sale of RMB20,000,000 100%
EFRREEEEERAFD) B At fine chemicals 20,000,0007C A R

HERHERBEEMm
EMaEME TER 2 E0)C) Mainland China ~ Manufacturing and sale of US$6,510,442 100%
{Zhangzhou EcoGreen Fine Chemicals Co., Ltd.) (o)c)  H B Akt fine chemicals 6,510,442%7C

HEREERM Em
EF R mER AR Meinland China ~ Manufacturing and sale RMB10,000,000 100%
(Xiamen Doingcom Food Co., Ltd.) (b)(c) F B A of food addictives and 10,000,0007c A R

seasoning

HERHER @A
RIaEZCEM)BRAED)) Mainland China  Inactive RMB1,000,000 100%
(EcoGreen Chemicals (Zhangzhou) Co., Ltd.) (0)() Fh B At Ligs 8 1,000,0007T A R &
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<l

Investments in and amounts due from
subsidiaries — Company (continued)

The particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company at 31
December 2012: (continued)

Notes:

(@)

The shares of EcoGreen Fine Chemicals Limited are held directly by
the Company. The shares of other subsidiaries are held indirectly.

Xiamen Doingcom Chemical Co., Ltd. (“Xiamen Doingcom”) and
Xiamen Doingcom Biotechnology Co., Ltd. are sino-foreign owned
enterprises established in Xiamen, Fujian Province, Mainland China
for a term of 20 years up to October 2017 and July 2024 respectively.
Shanghai Fine Chemicals Company Limited is a wholly foreign
owned enterprise established in Shanghai, Mainland China for a
term of 35 years up to March 2040. Xiamen Doingcom Enterprise
Limited is a limited liability enterprise established in Xiamen, Fujian
Province, Mainland China for a term of 20 years up to June 2024.
Xiamen Sinoloon Import and Export Co., Ltd. and Xiamen Sinotek
Enterprise Development Co., Ltd. are wholly foreign owned enterprises
established in Xiamen, Fujian Province, Mainland China for a term of
17 years and 20 years up to April 2012 and July 2016, respectively.
Chuxiong EcoGreen Forestry Trading Co., Ltd. is a limited liability
enterprise established in Chuxiong, Yunnan Province, Mainland China
for a term of 30 years up to March 2037. Zhangzhou EcoGreen Fine
Chemicals Co., Ltd. is wholly foreign owned enterprise established in
Changtai Xian, Zhangzhou City, Fujian Province, Mainland China for a
term of 50 years up to April 2057. Xiamen Doingcom Food Co., Ltd.
is a limited liability enterprise established in Xiamen, Fujian Province,
Mainland China for a term of 20 years up to October 2031. EcoGreen
Chemicals (Zhangzhou) Co. Ltd. is a limited liability enterprise
established in Gulei Peninsula, Zhangpu Xian, Zhangzhou City Fujian
Province, Mainland China for a term of 20 years up in December 2032.

The English names are for identification purpose only.

Investments in associates — Group

<l

I B2 B2 RE K U E A A
MIE—-RF(E)

MEBARZFBEMT : (&)

Wi

EcoGreen Fine Chemicals Limitedfi% {5 F AN A Al EH #
BE - HthHEARRMRIMERSE

BRI EREERARREMTHENHRARAT
RETENEEREEPIMRLZFINEEDLE &
EHMA—T+TF ST LFTARE-ZT_MF
t ALk EEBILBER AT ANRTE RN LET
B z2NERE  KEPRA=THAF =TT
F=ALk - EFfTHEZERATD /N EAMBERE
BEPFITRIZERRAR  BEPR-_TF E=F
“HERAL - EFITRELAOARAIRREM TR
BEXERARARADA/ZINELE  EPEAMBER
EEFMKRY  KREBRDF BT EFER=_TEF - D5l
E-E-_FNOARSFE-RFLAL - BERBEMA
EESERARANTEAMEEERETRIZEAR
AE BERR=FTFE_T=LF=ALL - BMHR
BHEALCTARAAA—HENELE EPEAM
BREABMNTERERYL  KRERAALTFE-FH
tFEMAL - BT HRRAERATDANHE AR
BEEFMTKIZAERAR  EEMA—_+F2-F
=—FF+ ALl FRIEZOEM) ERABTARFEA
EREEMTERELELERLIZARAT - &
EHA—+FE—_T="F+_Alt-

X BTREHRBS

FERE-KHE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREET T AREFT

At 1 January ®n—H—H 6,691 1,750
Additions 1N 2,500 5,000

Share of losses of associates ZHBE RN (267) (69)
At 31 December R+—_A=+—H 8,924 6,691

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group did not
have any unrecognised share losses of associates (2011: Nil).

There are no contingent liabilities relating to Group’s interests in
associates and there are no contingent liabilities of the ventures
themselves.

#HlE=

-+ -A=1T—8 AEEHEER

AERZEHER(ZE——F : &) -

BARBERE  AEEMECARABEREER
S EEMHAEE -
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10. Investments in associates — Group (continued)  10. GHERE-KBE (&)
Particulars of the associates are as follows: Bt 2 SFBIAT -

Jianyang Zhongtian Forestry Chemicals Co., Ltd.  Mainland China ~ Manufacturing of RMB5,000,000 35%
EEHRRMEER AR B At forestry chemicals 5,000,0007T
EEMUEER AR
Wuhan Geyuan Fine Chemicals Co., Ltd. (a) Mainland China ~ Manufacturing of RMB20,000,000 25%
RERRRA L IAR AR ) B A i fine chemicals 20,000,0007T
EERBBER AR
Note: B3
(a) Wuhan Geyuan Fine Chemicals Co., Ltd. is an unlisted company and (a) RERBEBEMEIBRARAIELTAR  BXRERH
has not commenced business. RAEMZER -
11. Available-for-sale financial assets - Group 11. AtHEsmEE 58

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETT ARETTT

At 1 January and 31 December R—A—BERt=-—A=+—H 200 200
Available-for-sale financial assets are unlisted equity securities. At ESREEAIEITMRARZES o
12. Inventories - Group 12. BFE-£H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBET T AR®ET T

Raw materials Rt 74,534 110,717
Work-in-progress TERS 1,692 3,522
Finished goods ERK G 41,412 57,196
117,638 171,435

Less: Provision for impairment of inventories B EEREREE (2,955) (20,129)
114,683 151,306

ECOGREEN FINE CHEMICALS GROUP LIMITED ¢ Fi4%5#{t TEBAR A A



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BT RRME

12. Inventories — Group (continued)

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included
in ‘cost of goods sold’ amounted to RMB684,058,000 (2011:
RMB690,239,000).

The provision for impairment of inventories of RMB166,000 (2011:
RMB17,168,000) had been included ‘cost of goods sold’ in the

consolidated income statement.

13. Trade receivables — Group

FE-KE(E)
WRBNZRIA [EHERREK ]2 FERE A

684,058,000 A R#(=ZF ——4F :690,239,0007T
AREE) o

FEEREREFE166,000TARE (DT —— & :
17,168,000t AR ) EEAHER [EHERK
AR -

13. FEWERF—-5£H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARBTTT

Trade receivables JE W BR K 381,655 366,042
Less: Provision for impairment of trade B EUBRFUR BB

receivables (4,307) (3,920)

377,348 362,122

The carrying amounts of trade receivables approximate their fair
values.

The credit period granted by the Group to its customers is
between 60 and 90 days. For certain customers with good credit
history, an extended period up to 180 days is allowed. The aging
analysis of trade receivables is as follows:

FEYRFIREERE QA ERE ©

AEBERTHEREP ZEEH—KRE0E0X - HRNE
RIFEERLMNEF  FERFEZ1B0ANEER
Hl o USRS ZIRERATAAT ¢

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR¥ET T
0 to 30 days 0E30K 142,236 84,756
31 to 60 days 31E60X 94,178 68,254
61 to 90 days 61E90K 61,258 47,759
91 to 180 days 91E 180K 80,316 128,302
181 to 365 days 1812365k 3,172 36,709
Over 365 days 365 KA 495 262
381,655 366,042

Less: Provision for impairment of trade A AR FUR B R
receivables (4,307) (3,920)
377,348 362,122
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BT RRME

13. Trade receivables — Group (continued)

The credit quality of trade receivables that are neither past due
nor impaired can be assessed by reference to the historical
information about counter party default rates. The existing
counterparties do not have significant default in the past. There is
no concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables,
as the Group has a large number of customers.

As of 31 December 2012, trade receivables of RMB320,426,000
(2011: RMB246,117,000) were fully performing.

As of 31 December 2012, trade receivables of RMB56,922,000
(2011: RMB116,005,000) were past due but not impaired. These
relate to a number of independent customers for whom there is
no significant financial difficulty and based on past experience,
the overdue amounts can be recovered. The ageing analysis of
these trade receivables is as follows:

13. BWERXR-KE(E)

REBRIREFTRZ 2RYIER  HEEERER
NERBKREE R ETPHNRREME - RENEP
TEBANER - ANAKRBEZFPHEREKN  8H
AR ER SR 2 EERR Y EBMOEF

RZE——F+_-_A=+—8  EKEX
320,426,000 ;T AR (ZZF——4F : 246,117,000
TARE)EZ2HESET -

RZZE——F+-_A=+—"H8 EBREFIARE
56,922,000t (=& ——F : AR% 116,005,000
TR EETERE - WERESRZEATES
AVBRENBLES @ MIBEBELER  BHIXR
TEA] LA o 1t E RUBBR A BRIR D AT T -

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T AR®ET T

91 to 180 days 91E180K 56,922 83,670
181 to 365 days 181E365K - 32,335
56,922 116,005

As of 31 December 2012, trade receivables of RMB4,307,000
(2011: RMB3,920,000) were impaired. The amount of the
provision was RMB4,307,000 as of 31 December 2012 (2011:
RMB3,920,000). The individually impaired receivables mainly
relate to a few independent customers which are in unexpectedly
difficult economic situations. The ageing of these receivables is as
follows:

RZZE——F+-A=+—H8 BREZARE
4,307,000 C (=& ——4 : AR#¥3,920,0007T)
LERE R_BE——F+_A=+—8 ' £
SHAABARKAL4307,0000(ZF——F : AR
3,920,0007T) ° EARIBER KRR EZRA D EE
RIER AN ERBERNB LR o LS B
RBRERAOT -

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETTT

91 to 180 days 91E 180K 640 —
181 to 365 days 181E365K 3,172 3,658
Over 365 days 365K 495 262
4,307 3,920
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W ERR -8 (&)
AR5 B FE MR AR O RR E A T O A A

13. Trade receivables — Group (continued) 13.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AREFT

Renminbi AR & 342,073 267,933
US dollar ETT 35,275 94,189
377,348 362,122

Movements in the provision for impairment of trade receivables

are as follows:

FEWRFOBE BB Z BT

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AREET T

At 1 January =JF=E 3,920 2,932
Provision for impairment of trade receivable JiE U BR SR (B s 4 387 988
At 31 December +=-—A=+—H 4,307 3,920

HERERKFINERD BEEAFKRERTH (17
BERIN - EBRERP TR —REEEY
EORW I FESNR B o

The provision for impaired receivables have been included in
‘administrative expenses’ in the consolidated income statement.
Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally written
off, when there is no expectation of recovering additional cash.

14. Prepayments and other receivables — Group 14. FENFREMERRX-EER AT
and Company
Group Company
55 NG
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTL | ARKETT | ARETRT | ARKETT
Prepayment for purchases BERM
of raw materials SCENES 121,006 115,951 - -
Input value-added tax AU Bl TR
recoverable (E R 7,745 8,461 - -
Others Hih 2,992 4,024 79 1,426
131,743 128,436 79 1,426
The carrying amounts of other receivables approximate their fair ) & Uy 3 0k 1 18 2 AEREEEEUARE

values and are mainly denominated in RMB.

58 -
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BT RRME

15. Pledged bank deposits, cash and cash 15,
equivalents — Group and Company

CEAZRITER - BHERAESE

BY—-5E

Group
%8

SN

Company
NHE

RMB’000 RMB’000 | RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT | ARBTT ARTRT ARBTET
Pledged bank deposits B 2 RITIER 98,271 110,988 - =
Cash and cash equivalents REeERRESFEY
— cash at bank and on hand —ROTLEFRS 833,919 581,724 634 1,501
932,190 692,712 634 1,501
The carrying amounts of pledged bank deposits, cash and cash  REZEFZRTER BE2kBELZEYHNIREE
equivalents are denominated in the following currencies: EEEMHSRENT ¢
Group Company
EE] NG|

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT | ARBTE | ARBTRT AR%®ETTT

Renminbi AR ¥ 922,495 679,967 - =
Hong Kong dollar BT 2,972 3,322 588 1,338
US dollar ETT 6,306 8,193 46 163
Euro 72 397 1,210 - -
Others HAith 20 20 - -
932,190 692,712 634 1,501

As at 31 December 2012, the Group has pledged bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents of approximately
RMB922,495,000 (2011: RMB679,967,000) denominated in
RMB, which is not a freely convertible currency in international
markets and its exchange rate is determined by the People’s

Bank of China.

At 31 December 2012, bank balances of RMB98,271,000 (2011:
RMB110,988,000) have been pledged to banks to secure credit

facilities granted to the Group’s subsidiaries.

The cash and cash equivalents are not exposed to material credit

risk.

m ECOGREEN FINE CHEMICALS GROUP LIMITED e {554t TEBAER AT

ZIRITER

RZZE——E+-A=+—0 AEEHXADER
e RIREFEWH922,495,0007T A
RE(=Z——% : 679,967,000 ARBE)HUAAR
Wit BRTHRRBERMSEHEHRER  HiE
K EAARBITERE -

R-ZE——F+_-_HA=+—H - 98,271,000t A &
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16. Share capital, premium and share options - 16. JBZA& - HEERERE-SEER AT
Group and Company

(a) Share capital - Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each (a) BAR—SREEIBTZEER

’000 RMB’000
=PRI AR¥T T
At 1 January 2011, RZZTE—F—HF—H"
31 December 2011 —E——F+=-A=1+—HK
and 31 December 2012 —E-——F+=-A=+—H 2,000,000 212,000

000  RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FTit AR®BTR ARBTT AR¥TR

At 1 January 2011 R—ZFE——F—H—H 465,210 49,232 181,841 231,073
Issue of shares (i) BITRRA () 21,700 1,839 23,621 25,460
Cancellation of repurchased FLEHE BB 1 (i)
shares (ii) (2,414) (199) (5,079) (5,278)
At 31 December 2011 RZZT——%F
+=-—A=+—H 484,496 50,872 200,383 251,255
At 1 January 2012 R-ZE——F—HA—H 484,496 50,872 200,383 251,255
Cancellation of repurchased T 85 2 OB AR 19 (iif)
shares (jii) (1,118) 91) (913) (1,004)
At 31 December 2012 RZT——%F
+=—A=+—H 483,378 50,781 199,470 250,251
Notes: Bt 5
(i) During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Company issued (i) RZB——F+ZA=+—HLEFEARA  x2FMN
6,340,000 shares at a price of HK$1.37 each and 15,360,000 shares 1.7 78 7T ¥ 176,340,000 % & & A% 1.3978 T 81T
at a price of HK$1.39 each. 15,360,0004% °
(ii) During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Company cancelled (ii) R-E——F+_A=+—HLEER  ARFUET
2,414,000 repurchased shares at a price from HK$1.70 to HK$2.60 f&1.7078 T = B A&2.607 ST 81 $£2,414,000/% E [61 88
each. f&1n o
(iii) During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company cancelled a (iii) AR R AR ZS(E () 201212 A31HERA © AR
total of 1,118,000 shares of which 726,000 shares were repurchased A 5E$51,118,000 A% - E 726,000 AR 20124F1 A
at a price from HK$1.47 to HK$1.69 each in January 2012 and the LAGIR1.47B T2 FR1.698 TR - H£:392,000
remaining 392,000 shares were repurchased at a price from HK$1.62 RM2011F12 831 BIEFEANUER1.62BTEEGR
to HK$1.96 each in the year ended 31 December 2011. 1.96 LiEE °
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16. Share capital, premium and share options -
Group and Company (continued)

(b) Share options

Share options are granted to directors and to selected
employees. The exercise price of the granted options is equal
to the market price of the shares on the date of the grant or the
average closing prices of the shares for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of the offer of grant, whichever is
higher. The share options would vest progressively from the grant
date to the third year after the grant (the vesting period) provided
that the relevant employee remained employed by the Group.
Share options are exercisable up to 10 years after the grant date.
The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to repurchase
or settle the share options in cash.

Movements in the number of share options outstanding and their
related weighted average exercise prices are as follows:

16. J?ﬁzli RERBRE-SEERAR

(b)  REREE

EEMERENOB T RIERBERE - IR THEKR
BOTEERSERETAHBRNMEXERR LA
HAAEXS RN ZFARTE  URSER
£ BEHBREERLEEREE="FHRHLTH)
BART BEHEEHEELEA-—EREENE
8 o BEETRNE L A HEI0FATE - AEE
WA E RMEEETS - UIRSRE O S ER HHE -

]
ull

MARITEEREESE REBBINEFESITEE &
T :

HK$ 000 HK$ ’000

BT Tt BT T
At 1 January ®—A—8 1.37 8,030 1.38 30,770
Exercised B217fE - - 1.38 (21,700)
Cancelled S - - 1.37 (400)
Lapsed B - - 1.39 (640)
At 31 December R+—A=+—H 1.37 8,030 1.37 8,030

All outstanding share options as at 31 December 2012 were
exercisable (2011: all 8,030,000 options were exercisable). Share
options exercised in 2011 resulted in 21,700,000 shares being
issued by the Company at a weighted average price of HK$1.38
each. The related weighted average share price of the Company
at the time of exercise of the share options was HK$2.85 per
share.

ECOGREEN FINE CHEMICALS GROUP LIMITED e fia%s4{t TEBBER AR

RZE——F+-_A=+—H  FIERITENER
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16. Share capital, premium and share options - 16. BA& - HZERBERE-EEEAF
Group and Company (continued) (&)
(b)  Share options (continued) (b) EREE)

Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the
following expiry dates and exercise prices:

EELBRITENBRENZHBMTEEDT

HK$ 000 '000
B it i
June 2014 —E—OF XA 1.37 8,030 8,030
17. Other reserves — Group and Company 17. HttFE -SERAF
(a) Group (a) £@

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTR ARBTR ARETn ARMTRT ARETRT AR®TR
At 1 January 2011 WZE——F-H—H 685 9,500 47,084 421 7,796 29 65,5615
Transfer from retained earnings REBEFIEE = = 4,273 = = = 4,273
Employees share option scheme: EERERETE
- Exercise/Cancellation of share options — 17 /SRR = - - - (5,219) = (5,219)
Cancellation of repurchased shares AHEEEERR = - - 199 - - 199
Currency translation differences ERES = = = = = (65) (65)
Balance at 31 December 2011 RZE——5F+_A
=t—HZEH 685 9,500 51,357 620 2,577 (36) 64,703
At1 January 2012 WoE-—#-F—f 685 9500 51357 620 2,577 (36) 64,703
Transfer from retained earnings REBBFIER = = 14,338 = = = 14,338
Cancellation of repurchased shares HEHEEERR - - - 91 - = 91
Currency translation differences ERER - - - - - 9 9
Balance at 31 December 2012 R-E-——F+=f
=t+-Hz&H 685 9,500 65,695 711 2,577 @7) 79,141
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17. Other reserves - Group and Company 17. HitfEE -—EBER AT (E)
(continued)

gl

(b) Company b) 2

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTRL ARBTR ARETR ARETR

Balance at 1 January 2011 R-E-—-f-B-Az&H 90,941 421 7,79 99,158
Employee share options scheme EERERE 2
- Exercise/cancellation of share options ~ BT/ RERE - = (5,219) (5,219)
Cancellation of repurchased shares FHEEERD - 199 - 199
Balance at 31 December 2011 RIE——E+ZA=+-Huis 90,941 620 2,577 94,138
Balance at 1 January 2012 R-B-—E£-F-Hzith 90,941 620 2,577 94,138
Cancellation of repurchased shares IHECEERD - 91 - 91
Balance at 31 December 2012 R-B-ZE+ZR=t+-Bz&t 90,941 711 2,577 94,229
Notes: BFEE -
(i) Capital reserve of the Group represents the difference between the (i) AEBEAREERBE-_STNF A+ BEHFN
nominal value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to U BE T B A R (D M E (B BB AN A 7)1 3 17 AR ER _F it
the share exchange on 16 February 2004 over the nominal value of the Befn 2 BRAAEER) =58 o

share capital of the Company issued in exchange therefor.

Capital reserve of the Company represents the difference between the ARATEBAREEEBE -_STNFE - A+ BEAF
costs of investments in subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the share U BB BB A R AR A A AN BB AN N B 35 17 LASR ER _E it
exchange on 16 February 2004 over the nominal value of the share RE 2 RAEERZE ©

capital of the Company issued in exchange therefor.
(i) Contributed surplus represents the capital contribution from an (ii) BHBHBIERNAT — R TESHEAETIEREGRE

executive director and an indirect substantial shareholder of the BEAFH 2 LEE -
Company, as part of a group reorganisation exercise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB F R R A

17. Other reserves - Group and Company 17.

Hituf#f - KER QR (E)

(continued)

(b) Company (b) AT

Notes: (continued) sk - (&)

(iii) According to the articles of association of the relevant subsidiaries (iii) BERPBEAMK L BB AR ZEZERAA
established in Mainland China and the Mainland China rules and KABRES B A AR B R AR B - o BB A R ZE %
regulations, Mainland China subsidiaries are required to transfer not TEBEDBE A e ERRE Y FEIERET
less than 10% of their net profit as stated in their annual financial MREPRDI0%  BAEERATES - H LR
statements prepared under Mainland China accounting regulations B BAEAETLAESERGRHEB A A EMEAR50%
to statutory reserves before the corresponding Mainland China B BIBEBFERE - AT TESENARNEEER
subsidiaries can distribute any dividend. Such a transfer is not MEAREIE BAEBNBARIEERERE NG
required when the amount of statutory reserves reaches 50% of BB ARIKAN - EESHBAH B AR ZBRRERRE
the corresponding subsidiaries’ registered capital. The statutory KeBERSENE - VEBHBAT B EEAT
reserves shall only be used to make up losses of the corresponding SEASMEA  CERRERE Y EGHARER
subsidiaries, to expand the corresponding subsidiaries’ production HEMEETAR R E——F+-_A=+—H" &M
operations, or to increase the capital of the corresponding P EEXERER AT ECAESEEIGFMER
subsidiaries. Upon approval by resolutions of the corresponding 50% + B UL B A VR B o
subsidiaries’ shareholders in general meetings, the corresponding
subsidiaries may convert their statutory reserves into registered capital
and issue bonus capital to existing owners in proportion to their
existing ownership structure. As at 31 December 2012, the amount of
statutory reserves of Xiamen Sinotek Enterprise Development Co., Ltd.
had reached 50% of its registered capital and accordingly, no further
transfer to its statutory reserves has been made.

(iv) The capital redemption reserve relates to the cancellation of the (iv) AR AR B s BT S AR R B 2 BRI B R -

Company’s own shares.

(v) The Company’s other reserves totalled RMB293,699,000 (2011: (v) REBEHESHEQARE(BIIAR)  ARQARAH SR
RMB294,521,000) which, under the Company Law (revised) of #  #) 5 293,609,000t ARB(=ZF — —F
the Cayman Islands subject to certain conditions, are available for 294,521,0007T AREE) ©
distribution to shareholders.

18. Borrowings - Group and Company 18. BE-SBEKAF

Group Company
B NG|
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARTT | ARBTT AR%TR ARBTET
Non-current IERE

Government loans BB 2,300 2,750 - =
Bank borrowings RITIEE - 111,946 - 96,946
2,300 114,696 - 96,946

Current BNERTED
Government loans BB R 1,120 5,320 - =
Bank borrowings RITEE 493,188 293,977 97,121 94,840
494,308 299,297 97,121 94,840
Total borrowings BEHBE 496,608 413,993 97,121 191,786
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BT RRME

18.

Terms and maturity of the government loans are as follows:

Borrowings — Group and Company (continued)

18.

BB

BE-KERAR(E)

S RERAT ¢

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
Repayable in 2013 to 2018, HARZE—=FE2=_T—N\FMH
interest-bearing at 2.6% per annum 818 - LA2.6EFFIEGE 2,750 3,200
Repayable on demand, BNHAMEE - DA7.6[E
interest-bearing at 7.6% per annum FR R B - 4,000
Repayable on demand, BNER(EE -
non-interest bearing %8 670 870
3,420 8,070
The maturity of borrowings is as follows: BEZEFBOT
Group Company
%8 A

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT | AR®TrT | ARETR | ARETR
Amounts repayable within a period of:  ZERA THIREE 2 708 ¢

- not exceeding one year —THB—F 494,308 299,297 97,121 94,840

- more than one year but not exceeding ——%FJA +  BRHBHE
two years M 450 112,396 - 96,946

- more than two years but not —MENLE  BTEB
exceeding five years 1F 1,350 1,350 - -
- more than five years —HEHNE 500 950 - -
496,608 413,993 97,121 191,786

The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date were as
follows:

REE R ZERAZMT

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETTT

Government loans BTER 2.0% 4.8%

Bank borrowings RITIEE 5.4% 4.6%
The carrying amounts of borrowings approximate their fair values. & 3R HBRIE(E B H A £ BT -
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18. Borrowings — Group and Company (continued) 18.

The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in the
following currencies:

Group
%8

HE-KERDF(E)
BHRNEE S E T R EA -

Company
NG|

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT | ARBTE | ARBTT AR%ETT

Renminbi AR 312,281 180,067 - =
Hong Kong dollar BT 27,985 14,792 - -
US dollar =TT 156,342 219,134 97,121 191,786
496,608 413,993 97,121 191,786

The Group has the following undrawn borrowing facilities:

AEEE TIRERERBE ¢

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T ARBTT

Floating rate RSN
— expiring within one year — —F N E|Hf 661,908 319,702
— expiring beyond one year —— LA EBIEE - 43,327
661,908 363,029

Bank borrowings of RMB247,714,000 (2011: RMB115,724,000)
are supported by corporate guarantees provided by the
Company, bank borrowings of RMB296,428,000 (2011:
RMB264,786,000) are supported by cross guarantees between

subsidiaries.

The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest-rate changes
and the contractual repricing dates at the balance sheet dates are

as follows:

e
REE

ERHAAENRRIT

RITER247, 714000 AR (T — —4F :
115,724,000 T A REB) AR R ¥ESTH - RITER
296,428,000 A R# (== ——1F :264,786,0007T
ARE)ANBREIEER -

CARENERENREHRANENE

Group
£

Company
N

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T | ARETT | ARETT | ARETT

6 months or less 6fE A AT 465,858 372,793 97,121 191,786
6-12 months 6—121& A 28,450 38,450 - =
1-5 years 1—54F 1,800 1,800 - -
Over 5 years 5% 500 950 - =
496,608 413,993 97,121 191,786
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19. Trade payables and bills payable — Group

19. BARARENRE-KE

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARBTT

Trade payables JE - BR K 29,824 18,077
Bills payable FET =B 237,584 223,707
267,408 241,784

The aging analysis of trade payables and bills payable based on

invoice date were as follows:

ENEFRRENERRIEEZE A ZIREDMAT

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETT

0 to 30 days 0E30K 80,363 27,796
31 to 60 days 31£60K 46,006 73,254
61 to 90 days 61£290K 33,979 53,193
91 to 180 days 91£180K 105,212 86,660
181 to 365 days 181£365K 983 147
Over 365 days #E3B365K 865 734
267,408 241,784

The carrying amounts of trade payables and bills payable
approximate their fair values and are mainly denominated in RMB.

Bills payable are secured by pledged bank deposits of the

Company.

ECOGREEN FINE CHEMICALS GROUP LIMITED ¢ Fi4%5#{t TEBAR A A
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20. Accruals and other payables — Group and
Company

20. BEEERKHEMERNR—
NG

=K
Group Company
&= NG|

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETT | ARBETE | ARBTRT AR%®ETTT
Payable for construction costs and B ER AN & IEE
property, plant and equipment ME - BE MK
JERt 2 F X 3,737 5,096 - -
Output value-added tax payable  FE{T$HIEIEE 5,880 4,183 - -
Accruals for FEET
— Administrative, selling and —1TH - SHERTH
marketing expenses HEEMH 16,627 15,950 2,141 2,050
— Government loan interest — BN ERF A 4,093 4,093 - =
30,337 29,322 2,141 2,050
The carrying amounts of other payables approximate their fair ~ HMEMNZEEEEEALEEE  BEFEUAR

values and are mainly denominated in RMB.

21. Derivative financial instruments - Group and
Company

Group
%8

W EE o
21. THESRTH-EBLEANT

Company
7l

RMB'000  RMB'000 | RMB'000  RMB'O00 | RMB'000  RMB'000 | RMB'000  RMB'000

ARETR ARETR | ARETT ARETL | ARETR ARETR | ARETT ARETI

Interest rate swaps i Fgep:d - 564 - 973 - 564 = 973

Forward foreign exchange contracts ~ EEHMNEAF

- held-for-trading -BRAENFEE 151 - 2,838 5,445 - - 2,838 2413

Total &3 151 564 2,838 6,418 - 564 2,838 3,446
Less non-current portion; eI

Interest rate swaps flxE#H - - - (973) - - - (973)

Current portion Bl 151 564 2,838 5,445 - 564 2,838 2,743

Derivatives held for trading purpose are classified as a current XZUETETENBARBEENEE - NFEH

asset or liabilities. The full fair value of a hedging derivative
is classified as a non-current asset or liability if the remaining
maturity of the hedged item is more than 12 months and, as a
current asset or liability, if the maturity of the hedged item is less
than 12 months.

HEWMIZHABE12EA  WE2BAABESR
RIRBEELEE  WREHRENIHA LR

12187 - AIRE2HEAARBEIESRPEERAIE -
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21. Derivative financial instruments - Group and
Company (continued)

(a) Forward foreign exchange contracts

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding forward foreign
exchange contracts at 31 December 2012 were RMB6,286,000
(2011: 579,683,000).

(b) Interest rate swaps

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding interest rate
swap contracts at 31 December 2012 were RMB97,425,000
(2011: RMB 195,328,000).

At 31 December 2012, the fixed interest rate is 3.84% (2011:
3.84%), and the main floating rate is LIBOR.

22. Deferred income tax — Group

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate
to the same fiscal authority. The following balances, determined
after appropriate offsetting, are shown in the consolidated
balance sheet:

21. PTAEERMTIE-KERQFE)

(a) =HIINE
AREN-_E——F+-_A=1+—8 " PDREENE
HASNE & B YRR E AN 4 58 56,286,000 A RE (=
T ——4F : 579,683,000) °

(b) FI=EFHk

RZZT—=—F+-A=+—8 " NHERLENFXE
HARIMRESLEE 97,425,000t AR (T ——
£ 1 195,328,0007T A RE ) o

RZE——F+=-_A=+—H ' E!
(ZZT——4F :384F)  MEEH;
SRITRIZERE ©

22, RIEFTISFIIE —&£E

EAAENRITRNOBEMHREELERRBE
RiksH - BREMSHREEMREY RFE—HHEHE
B AR EEREHEENBBEERERE - 8
EATTER — B E AR ENRERMSHEERE
BRI

M 53.8412
EHMERMmE

B
1SN
;

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETFIT

Deferred income tax assets to be ER3iE1 21 A 1% YL @] /Y iR 1T
recovered after more than 12 months FriSti & E 2,623 2,614

Deferred tax asset to be recovered E1218 A W e /) RE

within 12 months FriSti & E - 2,601
2,623 5,215

Deferred income tax liabilities to be EBi@1 21 A 18 Uk o] Y iR T
settled after more than 12 months FiisfiafE (18,200) (14,000)

The gross movements on the deferred income tax assets and
liabilities are as follows:

BIEFSTHRARNAZESHIT -

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AREET T

At beginning of year F9] (8,785) (10,500)
(Charged)/credited to the consolidated EAakERA

income statement (Note 27) f&ae), B (KisE27) (6,792) 1,715

At end of year FIR (15,577) (8,785)
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22. Deferred income tax — Group (continued)

Deferred income tax assets

22. JEIEFRSHIE - KE (&)
EAEFSBAE — &M

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T ARET T AREET T
At 1 January 2011 —T——%—H—H - = =
Credited to the consolidated EEHBERAER
income statement (Note 27) (Ft3E27) 2,601 2,614 5,215
At 31 December 2011 —E——F+=-"A=+—H 2,601 2,614 5,215
(Charged)/credited to the & PR A
consolidated income statement (&), &Ea (MizE27)
(Note 27) (2,601) 9 (2,592)
At 31 December 2012 —E——%+=-A=+—H - 2,623 2,623

At 31 December 2012, the Group has unused tax losses of
RMB40,662,000 (2011: RMB34,571,000) available for offsetting
against future profits, and a deferred income tax asset of
RMB2,623,000 (2011: RMB2,614,000) has been recognised
in respect of such losses. No deferred income tax asset has
been recognized in respect of a total of RMB6,134,000 (2011:
RMB4,583,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams.

At 31 December 2012, deferred income tax liabilities of
RMB57,840,000(2011: RMB45,652,000) has not been
recognised for the withholding tax and other taxes that would
be payable on the unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries as
the Company controls the dividend policies of these subsidiaries
and it is not probable that these subsidiaries would distribute
earnings in the foreseeable future. Unremitted earnings
totalled RMB578,404,000 as at 31 December 2012 (2011:
RMB456,519,000).

Deferred income tax liabilities

HAIKMEGERRBEENEREENHBEAR
#40,662,000L (=T ——F : ARM¥34,571,000
TL)  RIREBAREEENRRERTIEEMEN
HENEIEMER  ERRAELEHMEREEAA
R#2 623,000 (=ZF——F : AR#2 614,000
TC) o NEBWER AT A E IR K ERARE
6,134,0007T(=Z——4%F : AR¥4,583,0007T) °

B £ B B8 594§ = BT B A R AR B IR B K & K B
NAEER] RARR TG ARERFBEEL SR
AEBUAREFTTFTRANKERFBEAT I
HERAMERMEMBEBERERELESHABAR
#57,840,000L (=T ——F : AR¥45,652,000
TL) o WERERKEZEBEERHHIEE - KT
——F+-_A=1+-—"HANKXERKZEEARE
578,404,000 (=T —— & : AR#¥456,519,000
JT) °

EERSHABE-—KE

Withholding tax
KPS

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBF T AR¥ETTT

At 1 January —H—H 14,000 10,500
Charged to the consolidated income & R am R NER (HE27)

statement (Note 27) 4,200 3,500

At 31 December +—-—A=+—H 18,200 14,000
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23. Other gains/(losses) - net 23. Hthyezr (38%k) —BEE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT
Realised gains on derivative financial TESMTAZER
instruments Wz 669 -
Income on government grants B R W 406 191
Net exchange losses (Note 28) SFIE H 18K (FF5E28) (86) (5,908)
Net fair value gains/(loss) on derivative PTEEMITANAR
financial instruments BEWKE(BE) 3,167 (2,908)
Others Hit 66 (863)
4,222 (9,488)

24. Expenses by nature

BUHEEE D 2

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T ARBTT
Amortisation of prepaid operating lease B4 & € /18
payments (Note 6) B4 (F3E6) 231 231
Depreciation (Note 7) e (FaE7) 34,750 31,814
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 8) 24 & # 44 (H5X8) 9,320 9,732
Provision for impairment of intangible mEEERE
assets (Note 8) B (HiE8) 2,353 3,499
Provision for impairment of inventories FERBEEE
(Note 12) (FFsE12) 166 17,168
Provision for impairment of trade FEW AR FORE
receivables (Note 13) B (HEE13) 387 988
Employee benefit expense (Note 25) BEERHMFAXZ (KE25) 40,375 36,954
Cost of inventories FERKAK 684,058 690,239
Transportation B 16,466 20,524
Operating lease payments LEHEHRS 3,664 2,968
Auditor’s remuneration AN & 1,758 1,732
Utilities and electricity charges BRELB) ) MK EE 32,118 39,305
Other PRC taxes HAthrp BIFE 19,717 27,718
Consumables and supplies YIELERE 4,163 8,547
Bank charges RITEA 2,181 2,848
Other expenses HithEH 22,390 20,456
Total cost of goods sold, selling and BEEMKA - HE
marketing costs and administrative K HiGHER A &
expenses THER 874,097 914,723
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25. Employee benefit expense

25. EETBFX

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T AR¥ET T

Wages, salaries, other allowances and ~ T& - ¥4 - E )28
benefits in kind LEYF = 36,667 33,825

Pension costs — defined contribution RIREKA — ERE
plans (Note a) e E (MY Ea) 3,708 3,129
40,375 36,954
(a) Pensions - defined contribution plans (a) EBIRESRA-—EFEHRARE

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Mainland China, the
Group contributes to a state-sponsored retirement plan for its
employees in Mainland China, which is a defined contribution
plan. The Group and its employees contribute approximately 12%
to 14% and 0% to 8%, respectively, of the employees’ salary as
specified by the local government, and the Group has no further
obligations for the actual payment of pensions or post-retirement
benefits beyond the annual contributions. The state-sponsored
retirement plan is responsible for the entire pension obligations
payable to retired employees.

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”),
a defined contribution scheme managed by an independent
trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, each of the Group and its Hong
Kong employees makes monthly contributions to the scheme at
5% of the employees’ earnings as defined under the Mandatory
Provident Fund legislation. Both the Group’s and the employees’
contributions are subject to a cap of HK$1,250 per month.

During the year, the aggregate amount of the Group’s
contributions to the aforementioned retirement schemes was
approximately RMB3,708,000 (2011: RMB3,129,000). As at
31 December 2011, the Group was not entitled to any forfeited
contributions to reduce the Group’s future contributions.

RBFEAMESR  AEERETBEARER RS
RRBA ZEREFRAFBIER - AEBEHER
DHRM T RT R EZBEH S H12%E14% K
0% E8% MK @ BRIFHFEHRNKIN - N"EEHES
EEERINERRSRERERBINZEE - BRR
A2 RS EIAERN TRKER Z —VIRKE
MELE -

AEECLRHETERBE2EMBIGEEATELZ
ERMERF BRI AR E(AEEEE L) -
REBREETE  AREREBFERBEAGARR
SREIEATE R GRPIPTEE 2 BEWAL% % B At &l
k- MARBERESS ARK LR A1,25087T °

AEE  AEEEH MR KRSFTEZHRBED
73,708,000t AR (=Z ——4 : 3,129,0007T A
RE) c RZBE——E+=-A=+—0  AEEIE
BER UMt SR AT BER A H B2 HE5K -
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25. Employee benefit expense (continued) 25. EERBAMAX(E)

(b) Directors’ emoluments (b) E=We

The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31 BE-_T——F+_A=+—"HIFE SEF2
December 2012 is set out below: eI T -

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR¥®TR AR%®Tr AR®BTx
Executive directors BTES
Mr. Yang Yirong HEREEE - 2,110 19 2,129
Mr. Gong Xionghui BIEEmAL - 699 19 718
Ms. Lu Jiahua ERELZL - 1,076 19 1,095
Mr. Lin Zhigang MER L - 554 9 563
Mr. Han Huan Guang BENEE - 1,140 11 1,151
Non-executive director EEHTES
Mr. Feng Tao HERE = = = -
Independent non-executive BUFHITES
directors
Mr. Yau Fook Chuen EBRERE 176 13 - 189
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John mEELELE 176 13 - 189
Mr. Lau Wang Yip, Derrick (Note iii) 2152 2 5 4 (P 3iii) 176 12 — 188
528 5,617 77 6,222
Note: B E -

None of the directors waived any emoluments during the year ended 31 BE_ZT——F+-A=1+—HLFE IRESHEEMAH
December 2012 (2011: Nil). (ZE——F : |) -
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25. Employee benefit expense (continued) 25. EERMEX(Z)

(b) Directors’ emoluments (continued) by EE=ME(E)

The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31 BE-_T——F+_A=+—"HIFE 8EF2
December 2011 is set out below: &I

RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARETRE ARBTR ARBTT AR®TE

Executive directors BITES
Mr. Yang Yirong BREEE - 1,788 11 1,799
Mr. Gong Xionghui BRIEELA - 678 9 687
Ms. Lu Jiahua BREZL - 936 9 945
Mr. Han Huan Guang BENLE - 1,091 10 1,101
Mr. Lin Zhigang (Note i) AR5 & (B D - 87 2 89
Mr. Lin Like (Note ii) M52 5% A (P i) - 566 7 573
Non-executive director EEHTES
Mr. Feng Tao HERE = = - -
Independent non-executive BUFHITES
directors
Mr. Yau Fook Chuen EBRERE 180 11 - 191
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John mERLE 180 11 - 191
Mr. Lau Wang Yip, Derrick (Note iii) 2% 2 5% 4 (P 3Tiii) 99 7 = 106
Mr. Zheng Lansun (Note iv) BRI LA (M aFiv) = - - -
459 5,175 48 5,682
Notes: B3
(i) Appointed on 24 October 2011 0] RZTE——F+ A+ MHBEEE
(ii) Resigned on 30 September 2011 (ii) RZT——FNA=+HEF
(iii) Appointed on 10 June 2011 (iif) RZT——F X NATHEZE
(iv) Retired on 8 June 2011 (iv) R=ZT——FXANBEIK
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25. Employee benefit expense (continued)

(c) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year include four (2011: four) directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above. The
emoluments payable to the remaining one (2011: one) individual
during the year are as follows:

25. EERBAMAX(E)
(c) hERSHALT

rEEREEGRSHFMHOAMALEEOG(ZF—
—&F  ODEE - FIRFE LX) HRE A&
R e RERINREH—M(ZF——F : —fI)

ATEVHBT

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFIT
Basic salaries, other allowances and HEAFH & « HAhERL
benefits in kind REYF = 690 672
Retirement benefit — defined contribution R i&F — £ 28
plans KA S 11 10
701 682

During the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011, no
emoluments were paid to the directors or the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or as compensation for loss
of office.

ECOGREEN FINE CHEMICALS GROUP LIMITED e fia%s4{t TEBBER AR
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26. Finance income and costs

26. HREUE K AR

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBT T
Interest expense on: FEBA -
- Bank borrowings wholly repayable —ARAFAZEEEL
within five years RITIEE (32,283) (28,248)
— Government loans wholly repayable —AREFARHEEY
within five years HFER (82) (93)
Net foreign exchange gains on financing Bl & & B A9 R EE 3 U zs (M 5E28)
activities (Note 28) 119 11,602
(32,246) (16,739)
Less: amount capitalised on qualifying W ABEREEBENMeEEE
assets 1,992 8,588
Finance costs B 15 B A (30,254) (13,206)
Finance income B g Es
— Interest income on short-term —RHISRITERA
bank deposits A2 e 6,761 4,607
Net finance costs DESEUR AP N (23,493) (8,599)

RZE——F  AERENMcNB KA (EE B K
BERY254%(ZF——% : 4.3%) ©

Finance cost capitalised during the year have been calculated by
applying a capitalisation rate of 5.4% (2011: 4.3%) per annum on
expenditure of qualifying assets.

27. Taxation 27. %1\
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
Current tax RAERHIE
— Mainland China corporate income tax ~ — F Bl R 1b 2 Fr 1S 8¢ 29,122 24,799
Deferred income tax (Note 22) EEFTISFLIA (M 5E22) 6,792 (1,715)
35,914 23,084
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27. Taxation (continued)
Notes:

(a) Hong Kong profits tax
No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as the Group had no assessable
profit arising in or derived from Hong Kong.

(b) Mainland China corporate income tax

The subsidiaries established in Mainland China are subject to Mainland
China corporate income tax at a rate of 25% (2011: 24%). One of the PRC
subsidiaries, Xiamen Doing Biotechnology Co. Ltd. has obtained approval from
Mainland China Tax Bureau to be exempted from corporate income tax for two
years starting from the first year of profitable operations, followed by a 50%
reduction in corporate income tax for the following three years. Xiamen Doing
Biotechnology Co. Ltd. has commenced to enjoy its tax holiday from year
2008.

On 16 March 2007, the Fifth Plenary Session of the Tenth National People’s
Congress passed the Corporate Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic
of China (“the New Tax Law”) which took effect on 1 January 2008. From 1
January 2008, the income tax rate for the operating subsidiaries mentioned
above will be gradually changed to the standard rate of 25% over a five-year
transition period. According to the Circular 39 passed by the State Council on
26 December 2007, the tax exemption and reduction will be terminated latest
by 2012.

Starting 1 January 2012, the 50% reduction in corporate income tax rate for
Xiamen Doingcom Chemicals Co. Ltd (“Doingcom”) is no longer applicable.
Doingcom was granted the High and New Technology Enterprise (“HNTE”)
status in September 2009 which was valid for 3 years; and in 2012, the entity
has applied for renewal of its HNTE status for another 3 years. Management
has assessed the probability of successful application and since Doingcom
has been filing its quarterly corporate income tax returns at the preferential
rate at 15%, management is confident that Doingcom will continue to enjoy
the reduced CIT rate at 15%. Because of this, corporate income tax has been
provided for using the rate of 15% for the year ended 31 December 2012.

(c) Overseas income taxes

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands and, accordingly, is exempted from Cayman Islands income tax.
The Company’s subsidiaries established in the British Virgin Islands are
incorporated under the International Business Companies Acts of the British
Virgin Islands and, accordingly, are exempted from British Virgin Islands
income tax.

(d) Mainland China value-added tax

The subsidiaries established in Mainland China are subject to Mainland China
value- added tax (“VAT”) at 17% (2011: 17%) of revenue from sale of goods in
Mainland China and entitled to a VAT export refund at 9% to 13% (2011: 9% to
13%) from sale of goods outside Mainland China. Input VAT paid on purchases
can be used to offset output VAT levied on sales to determine the net VAT
recoverable/payable.

(e) Withholding tax

Pursuant to the New Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied on dividends
declared to foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax
rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between China and the jurisdiction of
the foreign investors. Withholding taxes are payable on dividends distributed/to
be distributed by those subsidiaries and an associate established in Mainland
China in respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

ECOGREEN FINE CHEMICALS GROUP LIMITED » 1554t TEEAR A A

27. HIE(E)
GEE

() BRFEHR
HMARARNEEY EATEES S RBERTORF - E LI B E
EBRSTEL B -

(b) PEIR TSR

R B A S 2 M B A RIZBR25% (=T ——4F : 24%) 2 Ht
KM E A EREE o BERPHEYRIRBRARES
FERE SRR E S S EERNFEEREMNCEMESHME -
HEGE=F20EMBRARY - EPFITHBEMRERARE
—ET)\FRIAZERRES -

R-ZZT+LF=A+ B F+EZBEARRERAEEALE
FBEAR—TTNF— A —BETHCREARLMBE S EME
FOEN$BE]) - T NFE—F B LHEERBEA
AR AFRESRNZ S EZ RIZERISY - REBBKREN=
TTELFF+ZAZ T ARBHEIEIGEA - AR KR
REEBN T —_FKIE -

H-Z——F—A—R EFPHLEBEAERAF([HiHk
BOTBEZACEMSHALNES -R_ZTAFNA -
TICBER TR RMORNNM  AB=F R_2F—=
FRARRESHRMERMLAFEN=F - EREST
HEFRINEE  MERZRAFEZ LRE16%EEN K
EOZFELEMBRBHRE - HEEBHE LR Br AR
FTHEREMIG%EEMEHRHRE - ERLRER > B#E2—F—
—ETZAST - HIEFENCEMERDIZ16%H Rt
1o

() BINREB
AARRBFREREARZEREHREEMRIAERLER
RE] - A ERRARRASEEMSH o AR ) EREE R
ERZzHMBRRADREBRBELHSBBREHEQREZTMAK
3 ENER SR EBRE LR AEN

(d) AR B Py S E AR

TR B R A S 2 T A R R B A R SME B E R 2 IRA
BAREIT%(ZB——F 1 17%) » ST B B ER (18
BER])  BEEOHEEEEER L ARMAOFBCGRBERR
9% ZE13%(ZF——F 1 9% 2 13%) c st B AR E FEFHIGE
FRFEENE - BRI 2 IR ER A AR SRz
SHIRIEER ©

(e) RIFAEB

REFHE B -ZFT/\F—H—Bi aPEOERINER
BEENREEZI0BNHERNBMAEN - WESR-FFN
F-A-RERER  WEAR-_TTLE+_A=+—HZE&
FREEMBR DR - MRFREINHREEMELR D ZRH
Wi - RIFTSRAEEMRNBABEHRRE - AKEEANHR
ER10% - Bt - B-TENF-A—HR  FEBRRRKL
EREEME AT KBS EMEENBRERECHSHAE -
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27. Taxation (continued)

The tax on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average
tax rate applicable to profits of the consolidated entities and the
reconciliation is as follows:

27. WIE(#E)

URKEGBRHADEFEZHE - BRAAMHE
REMERNMETF R R EMEENERTIR
FEEZR - HRIOT

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
Profit before taxation i B BT V48 ) 163,736 141,819
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates REERR G RERZ
applicable to profits in the respective B R E 2 HIE
countries 26,564 19,602
Expense not deductible for tax purposes 7~ A] F1% H) & A 3,651 522
(Under)/over provision in previous year — BARTEE (4) /L5t 2 1SR (61) 109
Withholding tax on dividends of the PRC HEBI[fEB AR ZREE T2
subsidiaries RIDFTISH 4,200 3,500
Tax losses for which no deferred tax RBERELEFRIA
asset was recognised BEMNTIE 1,569 1,604
Recognition of previously unrecognised  #&:2-F il < FE R
tax loss Eopr =] 9) (2,253)
Tax charge RIEX W 35,914 23,084

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 16.2% (2011:
13.8%).

Included in the tax losses as at 31 December 2012 was a loss of
RMB24,079,000 (2011: RMB18,319,000) that will expire during
the period from 2013 to 2017 (2011: 2012 to 2016), while other
losses can be carried forward indefinitely. The deferred tax benefit
of such tax losses has not been recognised as it is not probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the
unutilised tax losses can be utilised, or the amounts attributable
to specific subsidiaries are insignificant.

EAMETEOHREE16.2%(ZF——1F :13.8%) °

RZE—ZFF+_A=+—BZHREEERERA
24,079,000;t A REE(ZF——4 :18,319,0007T A
RE)  fHEBER T =ZFZ2-F—+F (=%
——F: ZE——FE_ZT—XF)FEER HibE
BRI EREEE - ARTTEEARKREERTG
FImaAKRE A2 HISEIBEE - KZSBEER
MEARIMTRE  Fit Bl EE 2 RERIE
Pl I EAER AR ©

ANNUAL REPORT 2012 ¢ —&— £

117



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SO R SRR AT

118

28. Net foreign exchange gains 28. [ERWmFEE

The exchange differences charged in the consolidated income EAHFWRRPIIBRNEL ZEeEENVEAR ¢
statement are included as follows:

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETT ARETTT

Other gains/(losses) — net (Note 23) Hb et (BK) — F8E(MizE23) (86) (5,908)
Finance costs — net (Note 26) B RS RAS — FRE (P 7526) 119 11,602
33 5,694

29. Profit attributable to equity holders of the 29. HFBEBRAATEREEE
Company

The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt HEABEBRAAREREEEN AR TP BHRE T
with in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of  ERI2 K E%8 521,480,000 C AR (= F——F :

RMB21,480,000 (2011: RMB5,737,000). 5,737,000TT A REE) o
30. Earnings per share 30. BRER
Basic B9/

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit BREXRBNIRESBERNAATHEE 25H -
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted average  BIAERE /T @A IETHHETE o
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETT

Profit attributable to owners of the BAEBNARNREAES
Company 127,942 119,058

Weighted average number of ordinary BT T RmARA hiE

shares in issue (thousands) FHEE (F5h) 483,488 483,211
Basic earnings per share (RMB per share) SF&EA 2 F| (G A REE) 26.5 Centsflll | 24.6 Centsfll

ECOGREEN FINE CHEMICALS GROUP LIMITED e fia%s4{t TEBBER AR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB F R R A

30. Earnings per share (continued)

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The dilutive
potential ordinary shares of the Company mainly comprises
the share options. A calculation is made in order to determine
the number of shares that could have been acquired at fair
value (determined as the average monthly market share price
of the Company’s shares) based on the monetary value of the
subscription rights attached to outstanding share options. The
number of shares calculated as above is compared with the
number of shares that would have been issued assuming the
exercise of the share options.

30. BRERE)

s

GRS BRI R R AT A #OE R 7B 1 LB A R
& RESHTEAERNIMEFHREGE - AQ
AR EENEE LB TR BREBRE - RIERTT
ERBEMMORBENEREE BEERAAE
BE(BEARRARMDOFIYARETE)AJHEANK
MBE - WA LTAHENRNDEE - BRJEK
RITEMEE BITHRMN BB EHLE -

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT
Profit attributable to owners of the il A N/N]
Company waE 127,942 119,058
Weighted average number of ordinary B 7T mRA INETHEAE
shares in issue (thousands) (F&0) 483,488 483,211
Adjustments assuming the exercise of BRI TT(E
share options (thousands) KA (T35 593 4,854
Weighted average number of ordinary ATESREERT
shares for diluted earnings per share H9 iR AR /Y N
(thousands) 9% A8 (F5h) 484,081 488,065
Diluted earnings per share (RMB per share) & J& 58 & 7| (G A RIE) 26.4 Centsflll | 24.4 Centsfll

31. Dividends

A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December
2012 of HK4.1 cents per share, totalling approximately of
RMB16,013,000, is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. These financial statements do not reflect such
dividend payable.

31. KR

REERTZRRBAFRG L FEBEE_Z—=
F+-_AZ+—HIEFEERRARES/RA1E
il » 2 #£#916,013,000C A R#E o BAEHRER T £ R
R FE AT AR S o

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT
Interim dividend paid of HK1 cent BIRA B B G AR @A 1 7L
(2011: HK1.2 cents) per ordinary share (ZZ——F :1.2/80) 3,951 4,760
Proposed final dividend of HK4.1 cents Bk R AR B I AR EiBA% 4.1 7L
(2011: HK3.48 cents) per ordinary share (ZZ——4 : 3.48/81) 16,013 13,635
19,964 18,395
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32. Cash generated from operations 32. REXBELEZRS
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARET T

Profit for the year RE [ A 127,822 118,735
Adjustments for: FEIFE :
- Taxation (Note 27) —BiE (fsE27) 35,914 23,084
— Depreciation (Note 7) —ENFET) 34,750 31,814
— Amortisation of: —HESELA TR IR ¢
— Land use rights (Note 6) — b A RE (M sE6) 231 231
— Intangible assets (Note 8) — |\ A E (KI5E8) 9,320 9,732
- Provision for impairment of intangible = — & &ERIE
assets (Note 8) B (M E8) 2,353 3,499
— Loss on disposal of property, —HEWME - BENMEREZEIR
plant and equipment (see below) (RT3 1 -
— Interest income (Note 26) — 7 B A (B7E26) (6,761) (4,607)
- Interest expense on bank borrowings ~ —$RITIEERBNFERZ A B
and government loans (Note 26) (FMizE26) 30,373 24,808
— Share of loss from an associate (Note 10) —ZGH & EEMHEE (M7E10) 267 59
— Fair value (gains)/losses on derivative ~ — T4 SR T AN AL BEWR),
financial instruments (Note 23) 548 (FizE23) (3,167) 2,908

Operating profit before working capital LEESEBA 2 ELGH

changes 231,103 210,263
Changes in working capital: EEECEE
- Inventories —FE 36,623 (35,817)
- Trade receivables — FEBR X (15,226) (71,809)
— Prepayments and other receivables — FE SR R E b fE R (3,307) (28,838)
- Pledged bank deposits —BEEPRITIFHK 12,717 (53,027)
- Trade payables and bills payable —ENERR N ENERE 25,624 84,677
— Accruals and other payables — BT ERREMERNR 1,015 6,520
Cash generated from operations REEBEE 2R G 288,549 111,969
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32. Cash generated from operations (continued)

In the consolidated cash flow statement, proceeds from disposal
of property, plant and equipment comprise:

32, REXEBEECZHE(E)

REHGASRER  LWEWE BMERREMENX
BREATEA :

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREET T ARETT

Net book amount (Note 7) REVEE (FRE7) 118 -
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BE K& HE

plant and equipment ZIEE (1) -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWME  HENMKRE

plant and equipment FTiS 518 117 -

33. Commitments - Group

(a) Capital commitments

33. F&E—£
(a) BARIE

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFIT
Capital commitments authorised and REREREEEREFTL
contracted for at end of the reporting HMEAEZ T :
period are as follows:
- Construction-in-progress and —TEETRUARYE - BE
property, plant and equipment K& 1,484 -
- Product development projects —EmAEE 14,900 10,300
- Land use rights (Note) — b fsE AR RE (BT 5E) 30,000 1,915
46,384 12,215

Note:

In December 2012, the Group entered into an investment agreement with a
local government body in Fujian, namely @&EEMEEBLEREEER S,
in regard to the construction locally of a plant in Gulei port for the production
of petroleum products (the “Agreement”). According to the Agreement, the
local government will grant the right to use a piece of land in Gulei port with a
planned total area of 1,000 acres.

The project will be carried out by means of different phases spreading over a
number of years. Pursuant to the Agreement, the Group has to set up a new
subsidiary in Gulei port responsible for the development of the project. The
Group has to obtain the related land use rights and the price of the rights
has to be determined by means of a public auction to be put by the local
government in mid 2013. The first phase of the project will be conducted on
the first piece of land with an approximate area of 300 acres. Deposit in relation
to this first piece of land of RMB9 million has been settled in January 2013. The
deposits of the land use rights relating to the remaining 700 acres, estimated
by management to be approximately RMB21 million, is expected to be settled
following the auction of such land use rights by the local government body in
mid 2013.

f i -

R-T——F+—fF - NEEEREZ—E ) BUT#E (BREE
EMEBEREEMBEREZ )AL —HRERS  SRELE
BEMERE-EERE  (FEEDMETR2A(ZEBED - R
Bzl - BB SR & EE —REREIEE1,0008 8 £
MR L AR o

HEGNZHET  BERRBABHFZA - REZHH -
AEBAEERERY —FZHMBRARARZRENER - A
SETARSHBN LIERE  MERERENERERR
RABESTAET  MEFAEMBAR -2 - ZFFHERT -
FHREE-HIRENE —ELH EEEA00 A iR
17 - F—ELIHHIRE ARY9,000,000tERN=—F—=4F—F
A o ST T00BUB MY i E MRS (BEERFHNAAR
#21,000,00070) * TEHHREHBRFEE -—T—=FFhi
TR ERENIRER A -
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33. Commitments — Group (continued)

(b) Operating lease commitments

The Group leases certain premises under non-cancellable
operating lease agreements in respect of property, plant and
equipment. The lease have varying terms, escalation clauses
and renewal rights. The lease expenditure expensed in the
consolidated income statement during the year is disclosed in
Note 24.

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases are as follows:

33. FE-—5£H (&)
(b) R TR AR

AEBEREZ MDA BENELEE B

%% EIE

Faﬂ?i&ﬁﬁuﬂﬂﬁag o

ZHEMAET

ZERNZFR - HEABK
RBRERT— - FARAHEERELEE

RETAHEEERE  ARKERENKERLD

T~

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR¥ET T
Not later than 1 year TBE—F 3,079 2,244
Later than 1 year and not later BB —FETHBART
than 5 years 2,380 600
Later than 5 years BB AF - -
5,459 2,844
As at 31 December 2012, the Company has no significant R-E——F+-_A=+—8  "AFHEFENE
operating lease commitments (2011: Nil). ANEERNARE(ZE——F : ],) -

34. Contingent liabilities - Group

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had no significant contingent
liabilities.

As at 31 December 2012, the Company has provided
corporate guarantees to support banking facilities granted to
certain subsidiaries amounting to RMB509,987,000 (2011:
RMB421,543,000) among which RMB208,525,000 (2011:
RMB167,793,000) has been utilised by the subsidiaries.

ECOGREEN FINE CHEMICALS GROUP LIMITED e {554t TEBAER AT

34. FIAREE-KE

RZB——H+-A=+—H r5EHEEFE
RZHEREME °

RZZE——F+-A=+—H8 ARFARBFE
LE [} BB A 7509,987,0007C A REE (= F ——4
421 54300075AE¢1€<)M§E"%$§§EF‘{’E& Gk
R-R-—F——F+-_A=+—8 WBARDHE
FHﬁﬁﬁﬁx%ﬁgzo&s%,ooorﬁ}uﬂ%(:EE—;E
1 167,793,000TT A RE) o
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35. Related party transactions 35. BEARS
The Company is 40% owned by Marietta Limited (incorporated in RATA0%ERE BB R CESE RBERE L
the British Virgin Islands) which is owned by Mr. Yang Yirong. BB AL 2 A Al —Marietta Limited#% &
The following transactions were carried out with related parties: EIRAEE T EITIIRZ ST ¢
(a) Key management compensation (a) HAREEEASHE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARET T

Salaries and other short-term employee  #4& R E 4G HHES 9,189 8,775
benefits =Rl
Total @t 9,189 8,775
(b) Amount due to a director (b) N —{uEERE
The details of the amount due to a director are as follows: B —EBRENFBOT :
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBET T

Mr. Yang Yirong BRI A 770 914

The amount due to a director is unsecured, non-interest bearing B —UEE 2 HEAEKT - R ENAREKE
and is repayable on demand. & e
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Results e
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=t-BLEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT AREFTT AR®Tr ARETT | AR®TR
Revenue WA 739,973 728,494 908,251 1,074,688 | 1,057,371
Operating profit 1B 140,745 137,014 164,083 150,477 187,496
Finance costs BIFE AR AR (6,776) (16,036) (11,906) (8,599) (23,493)
Share of loss of an associate FEIRE 2 IR - = = (59) (267)
Profit before taxation W% B A 133,969 120,978 152,177 141,819 163,736
Taxation B (19,513 (13,296) (22,108) (23,084) (35,914)
Profit for the year FEERF 114,456 107,682 130,069 118,735 127,822
Dividends [hda) 16,818 16,668 19,017 18,395 19,964
Profit attributable to: BHFER
Owners of
the Company ARAEEE 114,237 107,471 130,103 119,058 127,942
Non-controlling interests JEm | R RS 219 211 (34) (323) (120)
114,456 107,682 130,069 118,735 127,822
Financial Positions B AR R
Year ended 31 December
HE+T-B=t—-HLEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFTT AR®TR ARETT | AR®TR
Non-Current assets ERBEE 444,040 453,365 461,494 454,133 454,915
Current assets HEEE 773,620 862,757 1,087,770 1,337,414 | 1,556,115
Total assets BEHE 1,217,660 1,316,122 1,549,264 1,791,547 2,011,030
Total equity B 748,972 843,985 960,978 1,079,835 | 1,189,167
Non-current liabilities FERBBE 242,970 111,536 195,320 129,669 20,500
Current liabilities mBaE 225,718 360,601 392,966 582,043 801,363
Total liabilities BELSE 468,688 472,137 588,286 711,712 821,863
Total liabilities and equity mEERER 1,217,660 1,316,122 1,549,264 1,791,547 2,011,030
Net current assets mBEEFE 547,902 502,156 694,804 755,371 754,752
Total assets less BEER
current liabilities REaR 991,942 955,521 1,156,298 1,209,504 | 1,209,667

ECOGREEN FINE CHEMICALS GROUP LIMITED e fia%s4{t TEBBER AR
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